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Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Lid

During Myanmar Investment conference held in
Tokyo in conjunction with 10th Mekong-Japan Summit,
State Counsellor Daw Aung San Suu Kyi stated that
the success of our Thilawa SEZ as a crowning success
within a short period. Furthermore, State Counsellor
recognized Thilawa SEZ as the most successful SEZ
and a model success of democracy era.

Our company MTSH successfully reached 6™
anniversary while the Country is focusing on the political
and economic transformations.

Since the implementation of Thilawa SEZ, we
received consistent support and special attention from the
Governments. On 18 July 2019, Vice President U Henry
Van Thio visited Thilawa SEZ, provided guidance on
the progress and future development as a Myanmar’s
model economic development.

First of all, I would like to mention that we are proud
of being interested as a leading public listed company

by the general public.

Welcome
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MTSH is proud to report another successful year of
strong growth in Group net profit with a 22% increase from
Ks 12.8 billion last year to Ks 15.6 billion this year thanks
to the hard work of our partners, executives, and staff and
thanks to our customers for believing in us. Contributing
factors for the rise of our profit include increases in our
agency work introducing more investors to locating in the
Thilawa SEZ and increased efficiency of our operation
company, Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited
(MJTD). With such an increase in profitability, our Board
Members are pleased to recommend an increase in
dividends of Ks 250 per share compared to Ks 230 per
share last year. After proposed dividends payout, MTSH
will still have a strong cash position of Ks 28.9 billion which
will allow us to expand our investment horizons.

Following the recent announcement by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Myanmar (SECM) on 12
July which has allowed the participation of Foreign
Investors and Organizations to openly trade on the
Yangon Stock Exchange (YSX). We also believe that this
announcement will unlock the real future potential value
of our MTSH and that the YSX will become a more lively
and active market with higher liquidity. MTSH as well as
the YSX as a whole is now on the cusp of welcoming Foreign
Investors in the next 3 months or so.

Operation of Thilawa SEZ is starting to build
momentum with investment by 108 companies from 18
countries totaling US$1.61 billion. Seventy-two of these
companies’ factories have started commercial operations.
Due to increase in number of companies in operation, our
utilities income is on the way up for a consistent future income
stream. Our business is growing.

The recent public announcement by Toyota Motor
Corporation on 30™ May regarding the formation of Toyota
Myanmar (TMY) Company and the establishment of an
assembling plant at Thilawa Special Economic Zone is
another milestone with a US$52.6 million investment and
the assembly of 2,500 Toyota Hilux cars per year in 2021.

We are delighted to welcome Toyota into our Thilawa Special

Economic Zone. With Toyota investment inside our zone,
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we expect to attract many of Toyota's suppliers and to
create a larger economic spinoff. We are excited to capitalize on
the growth potential we see in front of us.

We believe Thilawa SEZ will continue to be seen as the best

destination for investors to locate their factories, despite increase in
competition in the near future, due to strong support of both the Myanmar

and Japanese Governments for the improvement in surrounding infrastructure.
A major road linking Thanlyin Bridge to Thilawa SEZ is near completion and will

ease the traffic congestion and reduce traveling time for both people and goods.
Additional infrastructure projects include a water supply and purification facility from

Lagunbyin Reserivor to meet the future demand of Thilawa SEZ and a new bridge over
the Bago River in parallel to the existing Thanlyin Bridge with expected completion by
2021. These efforts will further improve the attractiveness of Thilawa SEZ in the coming
years.

In commemoration of Japan-Myanmar Joint Venture 5 Anniversary, MTSH Board
Members visited Japan. During this trip, we met with the Deputy Prime Minister, H.E Mr. Taro Aso
where we discussed about the future development of the remaining area from 2,400 Hectares of
Thilwa SEZ as we believe that increasing the value and facilitating to reach to the fullest potential of the
Thilawa SEZ is the best for our Nation’s economy as well as our stakeholders and shareholders.

A new port constructed under Japanese Overseas Development Assistance (ODA) named Thilawa
Multipurpose International Terminal Co., Ltd. (TMIT), was handed over on 14" December 2018 and
operations have commenced. There is a growing need for an international port as well as logistics
operations as more and more factories start operating within the Thilawa SEZ. We are closely
monitoring the situation and planning for a multimodal logistic hub within Thilawa SEZ in the

near future. We will be moving forward quickly with all these new opportunities.

Within the residential and commercial area developed by our subsidiary Thilawa
Property Development Limited (TPD), the Japanese international hotel chain Super Hotel
Thilawa had a Grand Opening Ceremony on 16™ March 2019. This type of development
1s complimenting Thilawa Industrial Zone and bringing us one step closer to creating a
regional city center. TPD is also finalizing the design for Thilawa Community Shopping
Mall and we expect the development work will commence in late 2019 with a
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completion date of early 2021. With all these developments,

we aim to make Thilawa SEZ a destination for “Work,
Live and Play”.

MTSH management continues to dialogue on potential
investments in Myitkyina Economic Zone and Kayuk Phyu
SEZ. Both projects are important for the Belt and Road
Initiative (BRI) by China. Myitkyina Economic Zone sits
on the pathway of Ledo Road which connects China and
India, the world’s two most populous countries. The Kyauk
Phyu SEZ is the western gateway to the India Ocean for
China. These projects hold significant importance for
Myanmar economy once developed.

MTSH is committed to transparent and responsible
business practices, aligned with the international standard
for responsible business and the ten principles of the UN
Global Compact. MTSH has been a member of the UN
Global Compact since 2015. Good Corporate Governance
is one of MTSH’s core principles. We are committed to
fair and transparent business practices and creating
sustainable best value for our shareholders. MTSH is
honoured to be recognized as one of the most transparent
companies in Myanmar by the Myanmar Centre for
Responsible Business (“MCRB”), ranked seventh in the
2019 Transparency in Myanmar Enterprises(TiME) Report,
an improvement of two rankings from ninth in 2018. We
will continue to strive to be a model company.

On behalf of the Board and myself, I wish to thank all
the shareholders for your investment in Myanmar Thilawa
SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited. I also wish to thank
our new CEO, U Kyaw Zaw Wai, and his executive team
and employees who deliver great results year-on-year and
for the continuous support from our partners and Thilawa
SEZ Management Committee Chairman, His Excellency
Dr Sett Aung, and the committee members. We remain
committed to doing all we can to build long-term value
creation for shareholders and stakeholders connected to
our business.
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Corporate Profile

Our company, Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public
Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 3 May 2013 in Myanmar
under the Companies Act as a public limited company. Our
company was established by a Myanmar Consortium
comprising of nine founding shareholders initially for
participating in the Zone A industrial park development
within the Thilawa Special Economic Zone, which the
Myanmar Government and the Japanese Government have
co-invested to develop pursuant to the Cooperation Memorandum.
On the 20" of May 2016, our company’s shares commenced
trading on the Yangon Stock Exchange. Our company is
the second company to be listed on the Yangon Stock
Exchange and the first developer of a Special Economic Zone

of Myanmar to do so.

The nine founding shareholders of the Company are

as follows:

1. First Myanmar Investment Company Limited;

2. Golden Land East Asia Development Limited;

3. Myanmar Agribusiness Public Corporation Limited;

4. Myanmar Agricultural & General Development Public
Limited;

5. Myanmar Edible Oil Industrial Public Corporation
Limited;

6. Myanmar Sugar Development Public Company
Limited;

7. Myanmar Technologies and Investment Corporation
Limited;

8. National Development Company Group Limited;

9. New City Development Public Company Limited;

With 17,032 shareholders recorded to date, MTSH is
the public listed company with the highest number of

shareholders in Myanmar.

Company Registration Number : 151830293

Certificate of Commencement 166 of 2013-2014

of Business
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VISION

To invest in the development of Thilawa SEZ,
Yangon Region, for all round socio and economic growth
of the Republic of the Union of Myanmar and to become

a regional leader attracting foreign direct investments

MISSION VISION and VALUE

MISSION

To create value for all our shareholders,
investors, partners, employees and communities by
investing and providing reliable, sustainable business
environment through the development of word class
industrial and commercial infrastructure with
responsible international practices and good governance

ensuring long term growth.
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CORPORATE VALUE

(o>

SustainabilityleqghabaSEes:
The process followed diligently to manage

financial, social and environmental risks,
obligations and opportunities.

gEmE@EnnﬂﬁGcl
There is a real need for the business to be

open with all stakeholders.

Responsibility,

Beyond normal CSR with a responsibility to
prevent human rights harms, whilst ensuring
corrective avenues are available for infringements.

Maximize outputs from given inputs, and in
doing so, minimize costs.

9BHPHDEFEG:

Significant, memorable and worthy of attention.

BN HEFHDDODYWID0FTIE

Focus on tasks and the end results of those tasks.

cuoytuE(Th:cuicy:
Develop employee skills to keep the business competitive.

Health! Safetylay$iescmntemdinstiubesatmzapidme:gtco:

Identify workplace health and safety risks and put together comprehensive risk
mitigation measures.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

_ 9 Founding
j 45@ < Shareholders
po b

B

f

Myanmar 10
Thilawa SEZ
Holdings Public § <<
Company Limited \
’ Public
- .
[{2¢]

| ‘ Japan International
= B d _ Corporation
] Agency

Thilawa SEZ : Thilawa Myanmar B
Management 2 0-3\ > Property Japan Thilawa §
Committee "_) Development Development

Company Limited Limited Limited

MMS Thilawa
- 39q% < Development
,- Co. Litd
— — 100 }— —
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Note: MMS Thilawa Devefobment Co., Ltd owned by (1) Mitsubishi Corporation,
(2) Marubeni Corporation, (3) Sumitomo Corporation (4) Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,
(5) Mizuho Bank and (6) MUFG Bank
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Board of Directors' Profile

U Win Aung is the Chairman of the Myanmar Thilawa
SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd. He is one of the initiators
and the lead negotiator between Japan and Myanmar
Government leaders as well as founder Chairman for
Myanmar private sector’s involvement in the implementation
of the Thilawa SEZ jointly with the Japanese investors, to

create investment opportunities for Myanmar Citizens.

U Win Aung founded and continues as the Chairman
of the Dagon Group of Companies since its establishment
in 1990. Since 1993, Dagon Group of Companies has
successfully implemented property development projects.
Dagon Group of Companies engages in wide range of business
in general trading, residential and commercial development
such as shopping malls, hotel development, integrated
agricultural development, value added food industry, logistics
and distribution, automobile distribution, petroleum
distribution, and in other business sectors. He is the Chairman

of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Limited which
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specializes in agri value chain & infrastructure development
such as Danyingon vegetables, fruits and flower wholesale
market. He is also founder and Chairman of Golden Land
East Asia Development Limited (GLAD), which is one of
the founding public companies of MTSH. He is a board
secretary representing Yangon Regional Government at
Yangon Metropolitan Development Public Co., Ltd (YMD)
ajoint venture company between Yangon Regional Government
and Myanma Construction and Development Public Co.,
Ltd which aims to develop & upgrade greater Yangon City
& Yangon Region. He is also Patron of the Myanmar
Construction Entrepreneurs Federation (MCEF) and
Myanmar Licensed Contractors Association (MLCA) as well.
U Win Aung was elected as President of Union of Myanmar
Federation of Chamber of Commerce and Industries from

2011 to 2016.

He was also Chairman of ASEAN Business Advisory
Council (ABAC) (2013-2014) and Chairman of Greater
Mekong Sub-region Business forum (GMS-BF) (2012-
2014). He was also one of the members of National Economic
and Social Advisory Council (NESAC) & UN-ESCAP
Advisory Council.
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U Theim Wai @ Serge Pun is the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors and one of the Principal
Shareholders of the Company. He is also the Chairman of
Serge Pun and Associates (SPA), First Myanmar
Investment Company Limited (FMI), Yoma Strategic
Holdings (YSH) and Memories Group Limited (Memories).

SPA’s flagship FMI, one of the first public companies
in Myanmar, was established in 1992. In 2006, Mr. Pun led
YSH to a successful listing on the mainboard of the
Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX). FMI became the first
company to be listed on the new Yangon Stock Exchange
on March 2016. On January 2018, the Memories Group,
the Group’s tourism business successfully gained a listing

on the SGX Catalist Board.

Mr. Pun is currently a member of the World Economic
Forum ASEAN Regional Group, ASEAN Business
Council, Asia Business Council and a standing member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Dalian. Additionally, he served as an Honorary Business
Representative of the International Enterprise Singapore

for Myanmar from 2004 till 2006.

U THEIM WAI  VICE CHAIRMAN
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U'KHIN MAUNG AYE

VICE CHAIRMAN

U Khin Maung Aye is a Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Company. He is the Chairman of New
City Development, which is one of the Principal Shareholders
of our Company. New City Development is a Public Company
that is engaged in town planning and infrastructure
development, with the objective of improving the living
standards of rural areas in Myanmar and relieving the
population pressure in the big cities in Myanmar.

U Khin Maung Aye established Kaytumadi Co., Ltd
in 1991 and is also the Founder and Chairman of the Kaung
Myanmar Aung Group. He is also the Chairman of the
KMA Shipping Co., Ltd, Citizen Business Insurance Public
Limited, Myanmar Microfinance Bank Limited and Golden
Myanmar Airlines Public Company Limited (all of which
are associated with the Kaung Myanmar Aung Group).
He is also the Chairman of Co-Operative Bank Limited
and the Chairman of the Central Cooperative Society
(CCS).

U Khin Maung Aye was elected as Chairman of the
Myanmar Banks Association at its 15™ Annual General
Meeting that took place on 4 December 2015. He is the
Chairman of Myanmar Investors Development Association
(MIDA), which was established in 2014, the main objective
of which is Bridging Myanmar to the world.

He is a member of the Private Sector Development
Committee formed by the President of the Republic of the
Union of Myanmar on 24 October 2016 by Notification
No. 79/2016 of President’s Office.

He is also a member of Farmer’s Rights Protection
and Promotion of Framer’s Interests Steering Committee.

In additional to his expansive entrepreneurial duties,
he is a well-known philanthropist. He accomplishes the
humanitarian work with a unique passion and innovation.

U Khin Maung Aye graduated with a Bachelor of
Science (Maths) Q2 degree from the University of Yangon
in 1985.
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Prof. Dr. AUNG TUN THET

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet is an Independent Director
of the Company. He serves as member of the Peace
Commission, Honorary Professor at the University of
British Columbia, in Vancouver, Canada, Chairman of the
UN Global Compact Myanmar Network, Advisor to the
Union of Myanmar Federation of Commerce and Industries,
Visiting professor at Yangon University and Yangon University
of Economics and National Contact Point for the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD) Responsible Business Conduct, Chief Coordinator
of Union Enterprise for Humanitarian Assistance,
Resettlement and Development in Rakhine (UEHRD),
Member of Myanmar Investment Commission.

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet holds a Bachelor of Commerce
from Yangon University, a Post-Graduate Diploma in
Management Studies from the University of Brighton,
M.Sc. in Operations Research from the University of
Warwick and a Ph.D, in Management Sciences from the
University of Manchester and a Post-doctoral Research
Fellow from University of Marburg. He was awarded an
Honorary Doctorate D.Litt. Degree by the Yangon

University of Economics in 2015.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

U Tin Htut Oo is an Independent Director of the
Company. He was appointed in November 2014. Currently
he is the Chairman of Agriculture Group of Yoma Strategic
Holdings Ltd., a public listed Myanmar Company in
Singapore and CEO of Agribusiness and Rural Development
Consultants (ARDC) in Myanmar. He is Chairing the Board
of the Center for Economic and Social Development
(CESD) and also an Advisor to Union of Myanmar Chamber
of Commerce and Industry (UMFCCI) and Myanmar Rice
Federation.

He holds a Bachelor of Agriculture degree (B. Ag)
from the Institute of Agriculture, University of Mandalay
(1971) Myanmar and M.Sc (Agricultural Economics) from
Ohio State University (1985) USA. He was a Visiting
Research Fellow at the Institute of Developing Economics,
Tokyo, Japan in 1994-1995.

From 2001 to 2009, he was the Director-General of
the Department of Agricultural Planning, Ministry of
Agriculture and Irrigation and before that held various
posts in the same Ministry since 1974. He retired from the
Civil Service in 2009. U Tin Htut Oo served as the Chairman
of the National Economic and Social Advisory Council
(NESAC), and Economic Advisor to the President, the
Republic of the Union of Myanmar (2012-2016).

In his capacity with the UN and international
organizations, he served as Senior Advisor to the Executive
Secretary, UNESCAP from 2009-2011. U Tin Htut Oo
has been awarded 5™ Dioscoro L. Umali Achievement
Award in Agricultural Development in 2015 which
recognizes exemplary individuals who have advanced

agricultural development in Southeast Asia.
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U Aung Nyunt is an Independent Director of the
Company. He was appointed in October 2016. From 1966
to 2007, nearly (41) years of services at Myanmar Timber
Enterprise — Finance/Account Department, Planning
Department and retired as a General Manager (Planning).
As an attached duty in 1991, he served as a Director
(Finance) for two years at National Industrial Holding
Company Limited (NIHL) (Public Company). From 1995
to 1996, he was a part time Director of Myanmar Forest
Products Joint Venture Company Limited (Forest J.V),
Myanmar Korea Timber International Company Ltd
(MKTI), Myanmar Seal Company Limited (M.S.L) and
International Business Centre (I.B.C) Co Ltd. Starting
from 2008 to 2013, he was an Independent Auditor for the
Union of Myanmar Federation of Chambers of Commerce
and Industry (UMFCCI), Myanmar Engineering Society
(MES), NGO-Japan Seeds Asia Project, Trustee Board of
Pyi Shwe San Taw Pagoda and International Business
Centre Company Limited (I.B.C) under the name of Aung
Nyunt and Associates (Auditors). During his service at
the Ministry, he has joined and attended various Financial
Management Seminars in (9) different countries. He
attended the Audit Committee Master Programme in April
2018 jointly sponsored by International Finance Corporation
and Myanmar Institute of Directors. He was born in 1944
and studied at Myoma National High School. He graduated
with B.Com (Accounting) in 1964 and Registered
Accountant (Full-fledge) (now CPA) in 1965 respectively.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
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U TUN LWIN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

U Tun Lwin is a Director and the Secretary of the
Board. He has been the Chairman of MAGDPL since 2012,
which is one of the biggest shareholders of our Company.
MAGDPL is a public company, and is currently developing
container and general cargo handling International Terminal
at plot number 29 of the Thilawa Port Area, among other
business operations.

He is the director of MAPCO and he is also the
Director of Myanmar Citizens Bank Limited. He is serving
as the Vice Chairman of National Resources Development
Company Limited too.

He is presently the Managing Director of Shwe Me
Group of Companies. Shwe Me Group of Companies has
been listed as 3™ to 49" highest taxpayer in the country
for the Income Tax and Commercial Tax Categories from
Financial year 2010-2011 to 2017-2018. And, on 2014, it
has been awarded the prestigious “President’s Excellence
Award for Tax and Revenue Duty”. He is the Chairman
of SCG — Shwe Me Logistics (Myanmar) Co., Ltd.

He is currently serving as the Chairman of Myanmar
Pulses, Beans and Sesame Seeds Merchants Association,
the Central Executive Committee Member of UMFCCI
and the Treasurer of Myanmar-Japan Association.

The companies he is associating are currently exporting
agricultural products, importing construction materials and
general cargo, providing logistics services, developing
terminal at Thilawa port area, growing teak plantations
and involving in other business sectors too. He attended
the Audit Committee Master Programme in April 2018
jointly sponsored by International Finance Corporation and
Myanmar Institute of Directors.
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U Thein Han is the member of the Board of Company.
He served as the Managing Director in our Company and
also as the Chairman of Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development
Limited (MJTD) from 2013 to 2017. He is the Chairman of
Myanmar Edible Oil Industrial Public Corporation Limited
(MEICO), which is one of the Principal Shareholders of
our Company.

MEICO is an Industrial Public Company engaged in
manufacturing, importing and in local distribution of various
kinds of edible oil and oil related products.

He is the Founder of Golden Horse Company Limited
established in 1990 which is engaged in the business of
manufacturing, export, import and in local distribution of
various kinds of edible oil and oil-related products and also
export sesame seeds and sesame oil to Japan market. He
served as a member of the Board of Director of Shwe
Taung Cement Company Limited (Apache Brand Cement)
from 2010 to 2017. Currently, he is serving as one of the
Directors of Future Energy Company Limited
(Hydropower), both of which are part of the Shwe Taung
Group in Myanmar.

He is also a Director of Myanmar National Telecom
Holdings Public Limited (MNTH) which is one of the
Principal Shareholders of the 4" mobile telecommunication
operator in Myanmar with the brand name MYTEL. U
Thein Han is a patron of the Myanmar Edible Oil Dealers’
Association (MEODA) and also serves as Vice President
of the Union of Myanmar Federation of Chambers of
Commerce and Industry (UMFCCI).

U Thein Han graduated with a Bachelor of Science
Degree, majoring in Chemistry,B.Sc (Chem) from Rangoon
Arts and Science University (RASU) in 1972.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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U Aung Soe Tha is one of the members of the Board
of Directors of the Company. He is one of the Board of
Director of MTI Corporation, which is one of the Principal
Shareholders of MTSH. MTI Corporation is a Public
Company established to invest and to become a leading
player in the info-communications and telecommunications
and telecommunications-related fields in Myanmar. He also
performs as a Board of Director of Myanmar Information
Technology Pte Ltd since 2002. U Aung Soe Tha is the
Chairman of Myanmar ComBiz Group, which is engaged
in the business of Construction, Real Estates & Property
Development Export, Import and Distribution of Agriculture
Products, FMCG Products, Electronic Products, Petroleum
Products, Constructions Materials, and various commodities,
and the services in the information communications and
technology sector.

He was conferred the ASEAN Business Outstanding
Entrepreneur Award in 2011. He entered his steps to business
life in 2005 and became to get the Runner-Up of ASEAN
Business Award 2016 CLMV SME Excellence Awards:
Employment Category in 2016 by creating the better
environment and opportunities for employees. As reflecting
the best effort, Myanmar ComBiz Trading Co., Ltd. was
proudly achieved Most Promising ASEAN Enterprise
Award in ASEAN Business Awards 2017 which he is
performing as the Executive Chairman.

Being Young and Active Entrepreneur, he is serving
many areas of associations with all of his professionalism.
He is a Joint Treasurer of the UMFCCI, and Joint Secretary
of the Myanmar Computer Federation.He has achieved
Bachelor of Economic from Yangon Institute of Economic
in 2005. He has joined in Doctorate program of
Organizational Development in Assumption University
after graduating Master of Business Administration from
Yangon Institute of Economic in 2009.
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Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing is a Director of Myanmar Thilawa
SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited. He is one of
Directors in Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited
(MJTD) and Thilawa Property Development Limited
(TPD) as well. He is currently a Managing Director of the
National Development Company Group Limited (NDCG),
which is one of the Principal Shareholders of our Company.
NDCG is a Public Company engaged primarily in the
business of construction, trading and general services. He
is a Director of Proven Technology Industrial Co., Ltd
(TOYO Battery). He is also a Director of Small & Medium
Development Bank (SME Development Bank) which is
established to provide financial assistance to small and
medium enterprises (SME) in the country. He is Joint
Secretary of Myanmar Construction Entrepreneur
Association. Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing graduated with a
Bachelor of Medicine from the University of Medicine (1)
Yangon in 1995.
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U TIN MAUNG HLAING

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

U Tin Maung Hlaing is a Director of the Company.
He is Executive Director of MAPCO, which is one of the
founding shareholders of our Company. MAPCO is a Public
Company formed to mobilize public savings and to foster
broader investment in agriculture and agro-based industries
of Myanmar. He served as an Executive Director in the
Myanmar Automobile Development Public Company
Limited that manufactures and distributes of motor
vehicles. He has also been working as a Managing Director
in Evergreen Autos Co., Ltd since the founding of the
company. He is also involved with Myanmar National
Telecom Holdings Public Ltd., a company that focuses on

development of telecommunication sectors in Myanmar.

U Tin Maung Hlaing is also actively involved in
Myanmar Japan Association as Central Executive
Committee member. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Science in Physics from the Yangon University in 1988.
He attended the Audit Committee Master Programme in
April 2018 jointly sponsored by International Finance
Corporation and Myanmar Institute of Directors. He is

fluent in the Japanese language.
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U MYINT ZAW

U Myint Zaw is the Sales and Marketing Director of
the Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co. Ltd
(MTSH) and also Admin and HR Officer & General
Manager of Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development
Limited (MJTD). He joined the company since founded in
2013. U Myint Zaw has over 20 years of experience in the
sales and marketing & trading of commodity like agriculture
products and palm oil, manufacturing of automotive spare
parts, hospitality and services, construction and property
development industry. He is a trading and investment
veteran with background in the development of rental
factory, condominium project, hotel and auto parts
manufacturing. His primary responsibility at the moment
is the new business development and sales and marketing
at MTSH. He is also responsible to set up the new standard
operation procedure (SOP), new company rules and
procurement policy together with Admin and HR
department matter and general affairs at MJTD. He is the
coordinator between Japanese and Myanmar Officers,
Shareholders, Directors and also between MJTD and
TSMC (Thilawa SEZ Management Committee). U Myint
Zaw obtained with a Bachelor of Science (Chemistry)
degree from Yangon University, Master of Business
Administration (MBA) from University of Thai Chamber
of Commerce, Diploma of Business Law (DBL) from
Yangon University and Myanmar Directorship Certification
which is a first Director course in Myanmar designed by
Myanmar Institute of Director Certification Program
(MIoD) and Singapore Management University (SMU).
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U KYAW ZAW WAI

U Kyaw Zaw Wai is the Chief Executive Officer of
Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd (MTSH)
and its subsidiary company, Thilawa Property Development
Limited (TPD) since January 2019.

U Kyaw Zaw Wai has extensive financial and operational
management experience in leading Global and Americas
Real Estate Organizations, more than 27 years of
international professional experiences in Americas and Asia
including Canada, United States of America, Thailand,
Singapore, Japan, and Myanmar with numerous senior
management positions such as Country Leader, Vice
President Asset Management, Alliance Director, Director
Finance and Accounting, Director Planning & Analysis in
leading real estate organizations. Before joining MTSH,
he worked for the World’s Largest Commercial Real Estate
Firm CBRE, Toronto in Canada from 2006 to 2018, held
different management positions such as Director, Country
Leader. In MTSH, he takes a leading role in the sectors of
strategic planning, development, asset management, and
financial management. He is a founding member and

Director at the Canada Myanmar Business Council.

U Kyaw Zaw Wai holds Bachelor of Commerce from
Yangon Institute of Economics, Master of Business
Administration from Asian Institute of Technology in
Thailand and Post-MBA in Advanced Management

Program from York University in Canada.
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U MYINT ZAW
SALES & MARKETING DIRECTOR

The profile of U Myint Zaw is on page no (23). Please refer to the page for the detail.
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U THURANE AUNG

PROJECT DIRECTOR
U Thurane Aung is the Project Director of our Bran§§e90800pd 863D 8503§:51§050:0(g8(G:
Company and Vice President of Myanmar Japan Thilawa B%eo-qo$a%mo']goecoge§c38ma‘5 (MJTD) & sLogooecg))S
Development Limited (MJTD). His diversify experiences (Vice President) [gocloopSn B:a0§$e90o8l gpzfgosoad(gs,
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agriculture, commodity trading, plantation, retail and QEOVOMCOVP) PIEOICOIYINEEE SADVEEEQC:(0F:E):02§0)
distribution, petroleum, automobile and food processing. 0 83[go[g: 36[5e[gs [BreqiaGesoncdardeqapdes BYonnd
During his position as CEO of Dagon Group, he congcfu ccocfwoo%:ﬁﬁ]:eq cxgﬁcﬁ |C<re$a3<§%c\3c§c$:| ‘5;6482
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corporations. Drawing from these experiences U Thurane  ©2:6200050§ cocbadegpardegiap: cloolaopdi
Aung carried out the feasibility study and negotiated for §:org°$es'aoéooé sﬁ@ga%qozsgﬁ?cﬁ sogeaooésoqa%qlg
the joint venture between MTSH and Japanese Consortium ~ 92[g 090§006:65058650503¢ §EEmommg® colCigpign
to form MJTD from the beginning of MTSH. His §.§ :Sl’jcsaocrssj 0(7308&350%;:9 H 8:go:eq:c08c$: s'aa)ogep:o%
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and project implementation which was put to use by MTSH ca0C CYSJGLQJ’J: Bl“?g & oooé ms%).se@[emoé:epzwé
when our subsidiary Thilawa Property Development  [§§6293c00l205(8) s3:acduisé: oodbmbsepiIss 00558
Limited was formed. o0 cegca%c@gmcﬁ (MTSH) & m§§:sraoe}o€ MTSH §<§
His primary responsibility in MTSH is to coordinate qo$q380$:?o%m wcﬁogagﬁcé;:@@ewo @‘%eo-qjo‘%ogmo']
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He also contribute much of his time for the development
of the different business sectors he is in by joining the
Executive Committee Member of Myanmar Construction
Entrepreneur Association (MCEA), Vice-President of
Yangon Region Young Entrepreneur Association
(YRYEA). He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in
Business Information Management & Finance, which he
obtained from the University of Westminster, United
Kingdom in 2004.

U Myo Myint Aung is the Head of Finance of Myanmar
Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited and
concurrently the Chief Financial Officer of Myanmar Japan
Thilawa Development Limited.

U Myo Myint Aung has over 10 years of experience
in planning and budgetary control, financial and
management reporting, performance management, cash
management, financial and business analysis, investment
analysis and internal controls.

He worked as a Management Accountant for Pun
Hlaing Siloam Hospital (formerly Pun Hlaing International
Hospital) from 2005 to 2007. During 2007 to 2017, he
worked in Singapore for chemical segment of NOK
Corporation (a company listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange),
and his last position with them is Finance Manager.

U Myo Myint Aung holds Bachelor of Science degree
with first class honors in applied accounting from Oxford
Brookes University. He is also a member of Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants (ISCA) and a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountant
(ACCA).
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HIGHLIGHTS of the Year
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MYANMAR THILAWA HOLD
WELCOMING THE NEW YEAR 2019

INGS PUBLIC LIMITED

12 January 2019 Pan Pacitic Yangon

Deputy Minister of the Ministry of Planning
and Finance and Chairman of TSMC

MYA
NMAR THILAWA KEZ HOLDINGS PuBLIC LIMITED

WELCOMIN THE NE YEAR 2019
12 January 2019 ¢ 43
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Japan and U S.A Ambassadors visit

Canada Ambassador visit

General Administration Department Officials
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As invited by Mr. Hideo Watanabe, Chairman of Japan

Thilawa SEZ Holdlngs Public Co., Ltd. (MTSH), Members
of Board of Directors, and Senior Officials from |,
MMSTD (Mitsubishi, Marubeni,Sumitomo) attended the

" Myanmar Economic Seminar " and "5" Anniversary
Dinner of the Signing of the MOU on the establishment of
Myanmar-Japan JV Company, MJTD to implement the
"Thilawa Special Economic Zone"; celebrated in Tokyo,
Japan on the 29" of October 2018. HE Yukio Edano, who
was the Minister of Ministry of Economic Trade and
Industry (METI) during the initial negotiation to

establish Thilawa SEZ and U Thurain Thant Sin, #
Myanmar Ambassador to Japan attended the
Dinner Celebration. During the visit, MTSH had

the meeting with HE Taro Aso, Deputy Prime Minister

joint establishment of Thilawa SEZ; Mr. Tatsuya Terasawa,
Vice Minister of METI; Chairmen from MMSTD; had
open and friendly discussions on the development _
plan of Thilawa SEZ.

Mr. Hideo Watanabe ( Chairman, Japan ¥
Myanmar Association) ¢ 8c5[opij qo§§ee:
BorfBiop8 Joooesdi ezm0cfomed (Jg)qrdes3
I€:0[ge9620p5 "Myanmar Economic Seminar”
$¢ “o8codl saog-8°ge-eq-c[n$ g-eélﬁmecmﬁeacoé
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Performance Review

FY2018-19 Group Financial Highlights

Net Profit

" 15.6
*~ bn

FY2017-18 MMK 12.8 bn

Gross Profit Margin

60 .,

Earning Per Share

" 398

FY2018-19

MMK 398

FY2017-18 MMK 310

Return on Equity

FY2018-19 60% FY2018-19
FY2017-18 48% FY2017-18 149

% CHANGE FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (MMK '000)
Net Profit 20.0% 4,519,791 3,765,838
Share of Profit from Associate, MITD 25.5% 11,395,054 9,082,732
Profit Attributables to Equity Holers 28.4% 15,487,486 12,060,965
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 (MMK ‘000)
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.7% 32,343,081 32,126,840
Total Loan and Borrowing - - -
Total Equity 7.8% 92,048,849 85,392,163

Debt to Equity Ratio



Operating landscape and outlook

We are exposed to residential and commercial real
estate sector through our investment in Thilawa Property
Development Limited, and industrial real estate sector
through Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited.
Following section discuss performance and outlook of real
estate sector in order to provide better nderstanding of our

business and business environment.

Residential sector performed poorly in 2018 and
expected the trend will continue to 2019 due to oversupply
of properties in market, limited access to financing and
weak demand. Although residential sector is gloomy,
commercial retail sector shows robust performance at
average 90% occupancy rate with some major shopping
malls maintaining almost full occupancy rate throughout
2018. We expect occupancy level and rental rates for
commercial sector will remains healthy for future years.
Industrial estate maintained its star performance in 2018
and demands for industrial land will remains strong due to
growing manufacturing sector. According to “Manufacturing
Guide 2019 published by European Chamber of Commerce
in Myanmar, manufacturing sector is a major source of
Myanmar’s economic growth and will expand in coming
years. As an only operational special economic zone and
best industrial park in Myanmar at the present time, Thilawa
Special Economic Zone is poise to reap the benefits and
opportunities of this manufacturing growth. We believe
Thilawa SEZ will continue to attract as the best destination
for investors.

Based on market outlook and industry analysis we believe
that industrial estate will maintain its strong performance
for coming years, growing demand for commercial real
estate especially for retail space while residential sector
will remain sluggish. As we are excited to capitalize on the
growth potential we see in front of us, have streamlined
our strategy and business plan in the lights of current

development in the market.
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Integrated Report

We are committed to build long-term value creation
for shareholders and stakeholders connected to our
business. In our endeavor to fulfil corporate mission of
creating value for all stakeholders in transparent, responsible
and sustainable ways, our business activities and subsequent
outcome have interactions with various type of resources
(“the capitals”) during the course of value creation process.
These capitals comprise financial, manufactured, intellectual,

human, social and relationship, and natural.

It is our responsibility to communicate to stakeholders
how we conducted our business activities in transparent
and comprehensive report. Financial information alone is
not sufficient for comprehensive understanding of our
activities and performance. We have used integrated
reporting to link strategy, value creation process and
performance to provides broader and deeper insight and
to tell more coherent value creation story. Moreover,
integrated reporting link contribution of our activities
toward United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), and integrated

report also serve the purpose of sustainability report.

Guided by our vision, mission and corporate value, our
strategy is to balance between conformance and performance
aspects of governance, actively coordinating between
investments to capture the synergy among the investments
and making focus investments in the real estate value chain,
asset class and location. The following diagram illustrates

our value creation process.
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Business Governance
Performance aspect

Vision, mission and corporate values

Enterprise Governance

Conformance aspect
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Boundary of reporting entity for financial capital is
the same as financial reporting entity for financial
statements. Financial information presented in financial
capital are in consistent with financial statements. Our
financial statements are audited by independent auditor,
and conformed to International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and regulatory requirements.

For other type of capitals, the boundary of reporting
entity is broader than financial reporting entity. Non-
financial information and monetized value of other capitals
are aggregate value of all entities net of intercompany
transactions. These aggregate values include the portion
not related to us by virtue of control or significant influence
as defined in accounting standards. The reason for going
beyond the boundary of financial reporting entityis the
effect of risk and opportunities created from these activities
can better understand on aggregate basis.

We define value created as total revenue of all entities
within the group after eliminating intercompany
transactions. We make value for ourselves by creating value
for customer by delivering beneficial products to them along
the real estate value chain. In FY2018-2019, created value
amount to MMK 76 billion (FY2017-2018: MMK 68 billion)

and distributed to our stakeholders as follow.
Employees
4% (FY2017-18 : 4%)

Capital providers "———\
20% (FY2017-18 : 15%) £

Retained for future

22% (FY2017-18 : 21%)
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Communities
1% (FY2017-18 : 1%)

Society through supplier
and business partner
53% (FY2017-18 : 59%)

Value creation and distribution




Financial capital

The group net profit for FY2018-19 is MMK 15.6 billion,
which is 22% improve from previous financial year. The
main reason is due to MMK 2.3 billion increase in group’s
share of profit from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development
Limited and MMK 2.0 billion exchange gain in current
financial year. The exchange gain was resulted in FY2018-

19 due to currency depreciation of MMK against USD.

The Group revenue for FY2018-19 declined 51%,
mainly resulting from MMK 3.5 billion decrease in
construction revenue and MMK 2.7 billion decrease in land
lease revenue of Thilawa Development Limited. Despite
decrease in revenue, gross profit only falls 38% from MMK
5.2 billion to MMK 3.2 billion. The main reason was due to
MMK 1.1 billion increase in commission income of MTSH,
a comparatively high profit activity. Gross profit margin
remains high at healthy level of 60% for FY2018-19.

Cash generated from operating activities for FY2018-19
is MMK 9 billion and cash balance at the end of financial year
is MMK 32 billion, and the retained earning stood at MMK 46

billion which is 17% increase from previous year.
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Financial capital

Return on equity (%)
Return on assets (%)
Current ratio (Time)
Quick ratio (Time)
Earning per share (MMK)
Earning yield (%)

PE ratio (Time)

PB ratio (Time)

Dividend per share (MMK)
Dividend yield (%)
Payout ratio (%)

FY2018-19 FY2017-18 FY2016-17
17% 14% 26%
16% 13% 24%

23 16 19
13 9 11
398 310 553
14% 11% 13%
7.2X o 7.4x
2% 1.3x 1.9x
250 230 260
9% 8% 6%
63% 74% 47%
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Manufactured capital

Manufactured capital are physical objects that
are available to us for use in generating future
revenue. We have generated following manufactured
capitals through our investment in Thilawa Property
Development Limited and Myanmar Japan Thilawa
Development Limited. We aim to make Thilawa SEZ

a destination for “Work, Live and Play”.
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Thilawa Property Development Limited\
(“TPD”) was formed to undertake the development,
construction, marketing, leasing and operation of the
Residential and Commercial Area, Shopping Malls
and Hyper Market in Thilawa Special Economic Zone
(“Thilawa SEZ”).TPD is a joint venture with Thilawa
Special Economic Zone Management Committee
Company Limited (“TSMCC”) in which TSMCC owns
20% and Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public

Limited own 80%.
N\ J

° N\
D00

ogmo']oeqoo']og: 8vecpe¢cd8mod (TPD) cfé
-5 . Y co ocC C Q. . Y ocC C Q,
F2CDI0IYIICEEASE) CDCHTIOEPEC DIUCEEVCEP TE0O0ITD:

L
o cC o C cC cmh e cmc (]
QJ’J:(T.) qc:&:ooessoooo@czl GDJ:(D(V)@CCOCBC:I LY
L 1 [} 3 e

oC

’):Gq:

c C c._¢c ¢ c [+ c [
C\Jocq,:eﬂo:sooom GB(}D:G]G:BC:?Q O§Ga')OCJ9LC\300§: G(V)GGDOC@C:
c o c _coc ¢ -] Q c
033&020? GSO’)CQ(‘D&LCGI§8'BO')(D ODC\)O’]%%:Q:(O)O:GSFC:§

o
Q@ C (=3 @ 00 C [ o
oeaigeemoem memadeom (TSMCC) s¢ MTSH o0
C

Thilawa Garden City

Residential and commercial land own by TPD has
total area of 34 hectares, of which 1 hectare was subleased
to 8 major local banks where KBZ Bank is now under
construction and 0.6 hectare was subleased to Super
Hotel. Super Hotel had commenced their operation on
March 2019. Another 1.1 hectare was used for development
of worker accommodation and shophouses. As of 31 March
2019, we still have balance of 20 hectares available for

future sublease and/or own development.

Worker accommodations, shophouses, Super Hotel,
ATM from local banks and convenience store are
operational in Thilawa Garden City currently. Upcoming
projects such as development of shopping mall, futsal courts,
branch of local bank, food court for Café, Japanese foods,
Thai foods, and Local & Chinese foods will increase the

foot traffic.
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Thilawa Garden City Hectare Acre

Majors banks 1.2 3.0

Super Hotel 0.6 1.5

Workers Accomodation 0.7 1.7

Shophouses 0.4 1.0

Infrastructure and Public Area 10.8 26.7

Availble for future development 203 50.2

Total Development Area | 34.0 84.0

ocC C °
Property 9200 9EVIM PSPt
. o . . oC co ocC o oc _¢
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. o g0 . c o ccCc o o\ C C C N\
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As of 31 March 2019, Thilawa Special Economic Zone
still have 1,778 hectares of land available for future
development, and remaining land is about 3 times of our

completed development over past 6 years.

Announcement of Toyota Motor Corporation in May
2019 to establish a factory assembling Toyota Hilux under
Semi Knocked-Down (SKD) system in Thilawa SEZ raised
the reputation of our industrial park to another level. We
are optimistic that growing demands for land in our industrial
park from supporting industries of Toyota Motor
Corporation is imminent.

There are 105 tenants from 19 countries, total
investment USD 1.6 billion in Zone A and Zone B of
industrial area. Following charts show their country of origin,
operational status and composition of industry as of 31

March 2019.

Operation status of tenants in
Industrial Parks

construction
1655

Construction
completed
6%

Tenants country of origin
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Classification of tenants by Global Industry
Classification Standard

i Health Care
Pharmaceuticals, )
Biotechnglogy Commercial & Equipment &
& Life Sciences Professional Services
49, Services 1%
Automabiles & 4%
Components
4%
Household &
Personal Products
6%
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8% Industrial Goods
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Thilawa SEZ Hectare Acre
Industrial Area Zone A 361 893
Industrial Area Zone B Phase 1 101 250
Industrial Area Zone B Phase 2 17 190
Industrial Area Zone B Phase 3 49 121
Residential & Commercial Area 34 a4
Availble for future development 1,778 4393
Total Development Area 2,400 5,931

Water purification plant and sewage treatment plant
MJTD owns water purification plant with the capacity
of 6,000 m* per day and sewage treatment plant with the
capacity of 4,800 m® per day. In addition, MJTD is under
constructing a water receiving facility with the capacity of
3,000 m? per day to accommodate for increasing water

demand. These are another source of our recurring income.

Factory and office space

We also have twelve factories, and office spaces
available for rent under MJTD, where 100% occupancy
rate for factories and 82% for office spaces. Another 3
factories are under construction. These will form part of

our recurring income base.
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Intellectual capital

Intellectual capital is an intangible asset that we use to
create value for all stakeholder, develop new business,
improve existing business or provides competitive advantage.
Our intellectual capital comprises organizational knowledge,
information system, procedures, corporate brand and

reputation retained even when key employee left the entity.

Like all intangible assets, intellectual capital is subjective

to measure and difficult to quantify. So, we choose to use
narrative explanation of our effort to improve and preserve
the intellectual capital at organizational level.

Since prior to commencement of Thilawa SEZ, we have
conducted numerous assessments and planning of project
area covering land use and reclamation, road and drainage
system, water supply, power supply, telecommunication,
greening, flood control, contamination control, population
and socio-demographic study, and biodiversity. Knowledge
and information generated from these studies and planning
works are shared, disseminated and discussed among all
level of management.

We are closely working with TSMC and JICA in our
engagement with both communities affected by and
surrounding Thilawa SEZ. Operation and management of
industrial park at Thilawa SEZ is currently led by dispatched
expert from our partner organization such as Sumitomo
Corporation, Marubeni Corporation, Mitsubishi Corporation,
Mizuho Bank as well as from MTSH.

We aim to transfer knowledge, skill and expertise of
dispatched employee to local staff and retain within the
organization. System, standardized procedure and work
instruction are imperative to realizing our aim. We focus
on enhancing our system and standard operating procedure
to facilitate transfer, retain and improve the operational
knowledge. We have launched automated billing system
with online customer portal for our tenants to download
invoice from us using their individual log in credential. This
is an important achievement in the development of our
intellectual capital during this year.

One of the intellectual assets we have cultivated is
demographic information of our tenants. We believe our tacit
knowledge of our tenants will give competitive edge in
development of future industrial parks.

‘We also maintain the database of all enquires, complaints
and request from tenants and potential tenants. In addition
to taking quick action to resolve the issue, these data are
analyzed and for improvement and prevention of
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recurrence. Our accumulated knowledge of needs and
concerns of our tenants become part of valuable intellectual
capital.

As apublic company listed in Yangon Stock Exchange,
we are always dedicated to good corporate governance,
transparency and public disclosure. Our dedication was
recognized by the Myanmar Centre for Responsible
Business (“MCRB”), ranked as 7™ in Pwint Thit Sa 2019
Transparency in Myanmar Enterprise (TiME) report. We
believe this recognition is an important contribution to our

brand and reputation.
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Human capital

Employee play important role in our value creation
process, we entrusted the resources in them to increase,
preserve and transform our financial, manufactured,
intellectual, social and relationship, and natural capital. We
are always committed to attract, upgrade and retain skilled,
trained, talented pool of employee. We have provided various
type of support for learning such as class room lectures,
seminars, knowledge sharing session, on the job training,
off the job training and study time-off. The training receives
by our employee will not only intend to contribute our business
but to enrich their personal and professional development
and to create future business leader for society.

Our group manpower strength at the end of FY2018-
1915203 (FY2017-2018: 175) and it is 16% increase from
previous financial year. 33% (FY2017-2018: 37%) of our
workforce is female employee and 97% (FY2017-2018: 97%)
of the total workforce is local employee.

Our staff turnover is 26% and this is 3% increase from
previous year. We have formulated numerous policies with
specialist HR consultants, and introduced measure such
as competitive compensation strategy, training program,
motivation program and engagement program to retain
talented employee.

We have achieved over 1,400 man-hours of training

and 0 workplace accidents and injury for this financial year.
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6000 HEALTH QUALTY GENDER
ANDWELLBEING EDUCATION EQUALITY

DECENT WORK AND
ECONDMIC GROWTH

i

Social and relationship capital

We believe that trust in our organization by stakeholders is social license to operate our business. Our social
and relationship capital is the trust and long-term relationship with all the stakeholders we have nurture over the years.
We will continue to focus on building up the trust and relationship with all stakeholders. In addition to distributing the
value created which we have discussed earlier, we also engaged following activities with stakeholders to enhance the
trust and relationship. We are glad to report growing numbers of engagement program and activities in this year, and
how these activities contributed toward the achievement of UNDP Sustainable Development Goals.
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Stakeholder

Engegement activities

Shareholders  « Maintain good relationship with nine founding shareholders
»  Meeting and providing information to equity analysts from Securities
Companies for equity research report enable
» Convened fifth AGM in September 2018
+ Directors attendance of The Audit Committee Master Program conducted
by Myanmar Institute of Directors (MIoD)
» Director attendance of Director Certification Program conducted by
Myanmar Institute of Directors (MIoD)
* Appointment of independent invigilator for AGM voting process
» Engage through timely disclosure in YSX, Corporate websites and
Facebook page to Ensure all shareholders have equal access to information
* Ranked 7th in PwintThit Sa 2019 Transparency in Myanmar Enterprises
Report
* Best Return on Equity Award by Yangon Stock Exchange on YSX Listed
Companies Award 2019
« Highest float stock in YSX with highest % of shares available for trading
» Publication of FY2018-19 Annual Report
Business *  Maintain good relationship with Mitsubishi Corporation, Marubeni,
partners Sumitomo, JICA and TSMC
*  Welcoming 2019 dinner with our business partners
Supplier and * Conduct our purchasing activities in a fair, honest and legal manner with
contractor openness and integrity
»  Award contracts on the basis of value for money, not simply lowest price
* Prompt payment and making complaints courteously
» Ensure that all tenderers have equal access to information
*  Work with local business and voluntary sector support organizations to
promote the opportunities to work with us
Tenants » Convene regular meeting with tenants
*  Quickly resolve all enquiries, complaints and concerns raised by tenants
within 14 days
»  Analyze and review tenants calls for prevention and improvement
+ Invited industrial waste treatment operator to Thilawa SEZ
» Retention canals and ponds for flood control in Thilawa SEZ
»  Water purification plant in Thilawa SEZ
» Review, enforce and discipline environment report of tenants
*  Operating industrial park with tenants from diverse range of countries and
industries
*  Online weather monitoring system
*  Online, automated invoicing system
Community * Regularly conduct Thilawa Community Coordination Meeting
» Public consultation of project before commencement
» Thilawa Complaint Management procedure to receive, investigate and
facilitate resolution of grievance caused by Thilawa SEZ activities
« Supporting land compensation, resettlement, Income Restoration Program,
Vulnerable Support Program, Vocational Training Program
& 17 favieaons
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Stakeholder
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T i

Engegement activities SDGs

Government .

Employee a

General public -

Electricity support to monastery in the vicinity of Thilawa SEZ n m
Contribute and lead the community relation program with our tenants, the
program covers
o Education support (Free English class, Stationery Donation “4th
Back to school program™ for 2,700 students, Furniture &
computers donation to schools, Scholarship for Primary, Secondary
and University Students)
o Infrastructure support (Library, School building and Road
construction, Drainage repair in villages)
o Social welfare, Health and Environmental Support (Nutrition
program, Kahtina robe offering, Myanmar New Year Festival,
Health awareness program, Hygiene and sanitation program,
Free health check program, Drug abuse awareness program,
Clinical equipment donation, Trash collection activity, Schools
sport program)

Contribute to government with timely and correct payment of income tax, m m
commercial tax, tax withhold from supplier and employee

Participate in various programs organized by governmental agencies such

as TSMC, SECM and DICA

Paid Kyat 755 million net commercial tax to Internal Revenue Department mm
in FY2018-19

Received visit of government delegation from General Administration
Department to Thilawa SEZ in Sep 2018

Received visit of Union Minister U Thaung Tun for Ministry of Investment
and Foreign Economic Relations in Feb 2019

Fair compensation, training support, safe working environment, subsidy of

medical cost n Iﬁl n n n m
Equal employment opportunity and gender equality in hiring, training and E m
promotion

Vaccination program E
Team building trips and staff appreciation dinner ﬂ

Continue support of anti-corruption through UN Global Compact
Participate in various seminars, workshop and events organized by YSX
and Securities Companies

Support data to researchers working for master degree thesis

Internship program for students from Technical University

Plantation of trees, shrubs and bushes, and creating green space

Blood donation activity

Responsible use of water only from reservoir, not from aquifer
Treatment of used water before discharge into creek

Regularly monitoring environment in Thilawa SEZ covering, water and
waste water quality, air quality, noise vibration, soil contamination. waste m
disposal, and ground water quality

Contributing to Myanmar Economy and country GDP through attracting n
FDI and Job creation in Thilawa region (105 tenants from 19 countries,
investment totaling USD 1.6 billion and over 9,000 jobs created)
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Natural capital

Environment is the most valuable natural capital not only
for our business, but also for society as a whole. In the era
of epidemic natural disaster, global warming and climate
change, we are obliged to minimize environmental impact
of our activities as a responsible member of society.

As an investor of property developer, owner and
manager, major source of environmental impact come from
electricity consumption, water consumption and waste
generated from our activities.

Power intensity ratio for FY2018-19is 4.82 (FY2017-
18: 2.06) and this is 134% increase from previous year.
The increase was due to increasing number of our tenants
starting their commercial operation within industrial parks
rather than inefficiency of our operation. We expect the
power intensity ratio will continue to rise in the future as
more tenants commencing commercial operation. Our
source of water for consumption come from reservoir, and
there is no withdrawal from underground aquifer. We have
treated 59% of water consumed by the group and tenants
before discharge into the creeks. Golden DOWA Eco-System
Myanmar Co., Ltd operate industrial waste treatment
facilities in our industrial parks and manage the waste
generated by our tenants. For FY2018-19, waste intensity
ratio is 4.90 (FY2017-18: 1.44), the increase was due to
inclusion of fecal waste into total waste in this year. We
will monitor and endeavor to benchmark these intensity
ratios to maintain them at optimum point to minimize carbon
foot print of our operation.

At the operational level, environment impact of our
activities is continually monitor and publish to general public
through our business unit website. Environmental impact

assessment and periodic environment monitoring report for
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available in following links.

https://www.mjtd.com.mm/environmental-impact- 5
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https://www.mjtd.com.mm/environmental-monitoring- LTI DR G SO T SR

activities-and-reports thilawa-sez.

We have also created online weather monitoring

system for Thilawa SEZ which is accessible by public at
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o c o C. \\’] C ocC O. C N C o
oprofgoa) elgoéiaddclaopdl esBEep Bi0¢ ext0éepi

monitoring-system-thilawa-sez.

In the process of creating value for our stakeholders,
we have transformed agriculture land into industrial,
residential & commercial land. In order to compensate the
loss of habitat for flora and fauna, and protect the ?
biodiversity and ecosystem, 21.7 ha of Zone A and 20.2 ha §89§5°~>@ 99(‘:)83‘313 (03%)0?3 9'389396133?&36@99@5 0306905
Zone B will be established as green space. In addition to  coo:§qepS[gocloopSu
establishing common area as green space, each tenant will c,glgegogc\agegmg c§c000 88“"‘%‘%@@“9‘1‘”89’0@"%

set 15% of their plot for green space. mggogm&%&meﬁ,gg 9"’8@81‘ o?@(; oS 9"‘-’8‘3‘31‘ oG o

3o

We have planted 1,764 big trees, 9,148 small trees, 0359’3‘%[‘ eee °8§§ [élé“g"""lémgg’og‘;o’]& pooo s>
930 hard wood and 3,000 shrubs and bushes in Thilawa ogmo']sraogzgzgo:eq:cﬁmogc:ogé o%cﬁopé@:@ﬁo’]oaén

SEZ as part of our effort to greening plan.

https://www.mjtd.com.mm/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.mjtd.com.mm/environmental-monitoring-
activities-and-reports
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sustamablllty through governance based upon
the principles of transparency, accountability,
responsibility, independence and fairness.

. To realize the empowerment of the function and

independence of each corporate body: the general
shareholder’s meeting, the Board of Directors
and the executive management.

. To realize a condition in which all corporate bodies
make their decisions and implement them on the

basis of high moral values and adherencelio

existing laws and regulations.
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To improve our Company’s performance threugh
the creation of decision-making@piie s

improving operational efficieneyfandiimproving
services to stakeholders®

. To improve corporatelvaliielbyliimprovinggfinancial

performancelandiminimizinglinvestmentidecision
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“Corporate Governance Roadmap & Implementation™

As Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd. (MTSH)
is a publicly listed company, it is committed to build good
corporate governance on the foundations of accountability,
fairness and transparency. To be a sustainable and responsible
business, MTSH has made a great effort to promote the long-
term benefits for shareholders and have public trust by shaping
up well in our management and performance of our company.
Accordingly, the board of directors and key management set
standard of operating procedure (SOP) and the norms of integrity
and ethical behavior, which will be applied in the respective
tasks of employees and officers. In addition, the Board of
Directors has full responsibility to serve as a prudent fiduciary
for shareholders through the best practice in good corporate
governance. In Annual General meeting, the sharcholders elect
and designate the Board members year on year with the aim of
overseeing their interest in the long-term success of the business.
Afterward, the Board serves as the ultimate decision-making
body of the Company, with the exception of the matters that is
concerned with Shareholders’ decision. The Board chooses the
most suitable members of senior management who will operate
and implement business plans according to the Board of
Directors’ guidelines.

The Board of Directors has established Corporate
Governance Guidelines which provide a framework for the
effective governance of the Company. The guidelines address
matters such as the Board’s mission, Director’s responsibilities
and qualifications, Board Committee structure, Managing
Director performance evaluation and management succession.
As one more significant step towards a sustainable and
responsible business, MTSH has participated in the United
Nations Global Compact and has become one of the members

since June, 2015. Since then, MTSH has complied with ten

principles in the four main areas of Human Rights, Labor Rights,
Environmental Rights and Anti-Corruption guided by the United
Nations Global Compact (UNGC), and then those principles are
well integrated into our business strategy, culture and daily tasks
and operations. In line with our aim, “to deliver a long-term and
sustainable benefit to all shareholders, employees and
community”, the Board frequently reviews and updates the
related guidelines in order to achieve strong corporate governance
of the Company.

Our self-assessed corporate score using ASEAN Corporate
Governance Scorecard for this year is 60% (FY2017-18 : 57%).
We have benchmarked our score against avefage score of listed
companies, private and public companies and ASEAN average
available from an assessment jointly published by International
Fianance Corporation, Securities and Exchange Commission of
Myanmar (SECM), Directorate of Investment and Company
Administration (DICA) and Yangon Stock Exchange (YSX). Even
though our score fare better than Myanmar average, we
acknowledge there are potentials to improve our corporate

governance practices to catch up with ASEAN average.

Benchmarking MTSH Corporate Governance Score

69%

60%

40% 5%

MTSH Listed les Private les Public o
FY2018-19 Average

Asean Average
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Board Committees
Interim Management Committee

Chairman - U Tin Htut Oo (Independent Director)
Members - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet
(Independent Director),
U Aung Nyunt (Independent Director),
U Aung Soe Tha, Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing,
U Tun Tun, U Tun Lwin
Pursuant to the instructions given by MTSH Board,
Interim Management Committee was founded on
17.10.2017. U Tin Htut Oo has been acting as the Chairman
of the Committee which consists of seven Committee
members. The Committee appointed a Committee
member, U Aung Soe Tha, to assume the role of MTSH’s
managing director until a full-time CEO is appointed for
MTSH. The committee meetings were held for (13) times
and (110) points of meeting resolutions were made. On
2" January 2019, the Board appointed U Kyaw Zaw Wai
as MTSH CEO and he has been transferred to the IMC’s

responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

Chairman - U Tin Htut Qo (Independent Director)
- Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet (Independent
Director), Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing

The Remuneration Committee supports the Board of

Members

Directors in establishing and periodically reviewing
MTSH’s compensation strategy, guidelines and performance
criteria as well as preparing the proposals to the General
Meeting regarding the compensation of the members of
the Board of Directors and of Key Management personnel.

The Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman
(an Independent Director of the Board) and a minimum of
2 other members. The Remuneration Committee currently
consists of 3 members.

The success of MTSH is dependent on its ability to
attract, retain and incentivize the right talented employees.
MTSH employee remuneration comprises of fixed and
variable components, with the variable components directly
correlated with Key Performance Indicators aligned with

the Company’s Business Plan.
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Nomination Committee

Chairman - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet
(Independent Director)
Members - U Tin Htut Oo (Independent Director),

U Tun Lwin

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman
(an Independent Director of the Board) and a minimum of
2 other members. The Nomination Committee currently
consists of 3 members.

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board in ensuring that it maintains the appropriate
balance of skills, knowledge and diversity to support the
Company’s strategic objectives, and that a clear and transparent
appointment process for directors is in place. The principal
responsibilities of the Committee are to:

(A) Review the size, structure and composition of the
Board, including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of Board members, and make
recommendations accordingly;

(B) Identify and nominate candidates for appointment
to the Board, based on merit and against objective
criteria;

(C) Make recommendations to the membership of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees
in consultation with the chairmen of those committees;
and

(D) Develop and periodically review, any objectives
established for the implementation of diversity on
the Board and monitor progress toward the
achievements of those objectives.

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC)
Chairman - U Aung Nyunt (Independent Director)
Members - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet

(Independent Director), U Min Oo

The Audit, Risk and Complicance Committee consists
of the Chairman (an Independent Director of the Board)
and a minimum of 2 other members. The ARCC currently
consists of 3 members. At least one member has to have
recent and relevant financial expertise; the others must be
familiar with the issues of accounting and audit. In
discharging its responsibilities, it has unrestricted access
to the Company’s management, books and records. The
ARCC supports the Board of Directors in its supervision
of financial controls through a direct link to Win Thin &
Associates (external auditors) and the internal audit
department.

The ARCC regularly reports to the Board on its findings
and proposes appropriate actions. The responsibility for
approving the Annual and Semi-Annual Financial
Statements remains with the Board of Directors.
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Board of Directors' Interest in Share

As of (17.8.2018 and 12.7.2019), none of our Directors hold Shares in our Company except of as set out below:

Holdings Registered in name Holdings in which Director is
of Director as at deemed to have an interest as at

17.8.2018 12.7.2019 17.8.2018 12.7.2019

U Win Aung 256,340 256,340 2,029,046 2,029,046

U Theim Wai - - 643,503 643,503

U Khin Maung Aye - - 1,860,000 1,900,000

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet - - - -

U Tin Htut Oo - = = &

U Aung Nyunt = » o =

U Thein Han - - 1,797,000 1,797,000

U Tun Lwin 523,850 523,850 1,921,016 1,921,010

U Aung Soe Tha - - 1,829,000 1,639,840

U Tin Maung Hlaing - - 1,948,640 1,948,640

Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing « - 1,684,110 1,409,994

U Myint Zaw 11,210 11,210 - -

* Rectification of previous data(1,971,000).

As of (17.8.2018 and 12.7.2019), none of our Executive Officers hold Shares in our Company except of

as set out below:
Holdings Registered in name Holdings in which Executive Officer is

of Executive Officer as at deemed to have an interest as at

17.8.2018 12.7.2019 17.8.2018 12.7.2019

U Kyaw Zaw Wai . - - “

U Thurane Aung 493,540 493,540 143,150 143,150

U Myo Myint Aung = - = =
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Board of Directors, Executive Directors, Senior Management and Compliance Officer

Remuneration

Kyat in Million
In capacity as In capacity as Total
BOARD OF DIRECTORS management Honorarium Director 2018-19 remuneration in
Salary Proposed Bonus all capacity
1 U Win Aung Chairman - MTSH, MITD & TPD 14.99 14.99
2 U Khin Maung Aye Vice Chairman - MTSH & TPD = 13.49 13.49
3 U Theim Wai Vice Chairman - MTSH & TPD - 13.49 13.49
4 Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet Independent Director - MTSH - 24,00 11.99 35,99
5 U Tin Htut Oo Independent Director - MTSH - 24,00 11.99 35.99
6 U Aung Nyunt Independent Director - MTSH B 24.00 11.99 35.99
7 U Thein Han Director - MTSH & TPD - 11.99 11.99
8 U Tun Lwin Director - MTSH & TPD 11.99 11.99
9 U Aung Soe Tha Director - MTSH & TPD - 11.99 11.99
10 Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing Director - MTSH , MUTD & TPD - 11.99 11.99
11 U Tin Maung Hlaing Director - MTSH , MJTD & TPD 11.99 11.99
12 U Nyi Khin Director - MTSH & TPD (Apr 2018 - Sep 2018) - 6.02 6.02
13 U Myint Zaw Director - MTSH , MUTD & TPD (Oct 2018 - Mar 2019) 6.02 6.02
SUBTOTAL 72.00 149.93 221.93
Executive Directors for Management Role Salary Honorarium Bonus Total

1 U Aung Soe Tha MD-MTSH (Apr 2018 - Dec 2018) 66.40
' 66.40

2 Dr Nyan Thit Hlaing MD - TPD (Oct 2018 - Mar 2019) 34.61
: 34.61

3 U Myint Zaw Sales & Marketing Director - MTSH & TPD, GM & 66.96 11.40
Admin & HR Officer of MITD : ; 78.36
SUBTOTAL 167.97 11.40 179.37
Senior Management
1 U Kyaw Zaw Wai CEO - MTSH & TPD (Jan 2019 - March 2019) 79.44 79.44
2 U Thurane Aung VP- MITD, Project Director - MTSH & TPD 74.99 12.77 87.76
3 U Myo Myint Aung Head of Finance - MTSH, CFO - MITD 108.27 11.40 119.67
4 Mr. Law Teck Wee COO - MTSH, CEO - TPD (Apr 2018 - Sep 2018) 133.53 28.08 161.61
SUBTOTAL 396.24 52.25 448.48
Compliance Officer
1 U Win Thinn Compliance Officer 12.00 12.00
SUBTOTAL 12.00 12.00
GRAND TOTAL 576.20 72.00 213.58 861.79
Legend:

MD-Managing Director, CEO-Chief Executive Officer, VP-Vice President, NED-Non-Executive Director, ED-Executive Director, COO-Chief Operating Officer,
CFO-Chief Financial Officer, GM-General Manager




Board Meetings

Our Board and Board Committees have held the meetings to assess and evaluate Company’s business
performance, key activities and strategic policies. The meetings held by company from 1* April 2018
to 31* March 2019 are as follows:

MTSH BOD A‘é‘gf‘l";::t ::d Nomination Remuneration
Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting

Arhomeizaegl:zco:mt:uysiclzes

SQoBom=83265(4E cpgaBel crdesieeongodeodypiaa: 8odad006q§sE cumguypigecd§te§eecyad jooe-
JOOR 22mae:$6a3¢ -

d§od03gze0pdi3060:03 (00) 0361 eondeod () qdoRE eqtiod e::Celgfps opbimnbicdodsngembucdey
320513260 (J) [0361 cpefesepes gfeqiendecdy saophiaaco: (0) [365¢ mrecjogiegeabeode maopdisaco: () [36

8 o€:08E30laopde
A, BiSk & Nomination | Remuneration Special Meeting
Director Boar.d Compll‘ance Committee Committee g .
Meeting Committee . . General Meeting
Maeting Meeting Meeting

U Win Aung 10 B

U Theim Wai 7 i

U Khin Maung Aye 6 - =

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet 6 2 1 - 1

U Tin Htut Oo 8 1 2 1

U Aung Nyunt 9 2 1

U Thein Han 7 1

U Tun Lwin 10 - 1

U Aung Soe Tha 8 1

Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing 10 2 1

U Tin Maung Hlaing 9 1

U Nyi Khin (member until 6 1

29 Sep 2018)

U Myint Zaw (member 4 1

since 29 Sep 2018)
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Holding of 5" Annual General Meeting &
Special Meeting
The 5™ Annual General Meeting and Special Meeting

were successfully held on 29" September 2018 at Myanmar
Event Park (MEP). There were 1,902 shareholders
attending the meeting. During the meeting, Chairman
informed the progress, financial information and future
business plans to the shareholders. In 5" Annual General
Meeting, 5 Directors have contested for re-election and 4
Directors were re-elected, 1 Director was newly elected
to the board, and 4 Directors continue to serve for full tenure
of their directorship. The AGM also re-appointed existing
3 Independent Directors to the board for another term.
As Special Meeting’s resolution, the company’s new
constitution in compliance with the 2017 Company law was
approved. Several resolutions were passed at the Annual
General Meeting. The highlights of the resolutions were
approval of the dividend payment 230 Kyats per share,
1% of 2017-18 Financial Year net profit as Board of
Director bonus in recognition of their contributions to the
company's success and re-appointment of Win Thin and

Associates as external auditor for 2018-19 Financial Year.

[ c c ¢ (S (o c
089‘33@966’30)3&000)(\)8836&3@(?89088’3602?9
(5
S'BCE: S’BOES 32602

(o Q crcy o c O C C C
B§GDO§)(\)O!]S'BO’)(O)99:GO’) 0?_280300930(\)0 9'39']‘33

w2
On

0
3n
8o
on
()]
§
3
C
3
%
co

C C C [of C C

g 0BA 0gem(386(gocd §dodwd

26036 N0p5:9260:8¢ 9N0P3:9260:03  JOONI§ DI
o o d e [8 L LJd

ocbonEom Jp qodeg0pé Myanmar Event Park § eonélgéen

o o

C N f] C o f] C C C C f]C

CDJC:O?O (DEII 9’3&20 9’30&2:9’3903080 §1(DQ)'JGJIC??GO (o3
C N [ (3

(O,@OJ)E. (7.)0’)661‘3(7)9.[9. EO’DSE.OC.G%’)C? O?%CDG’I

cocgglcaooég_oge.?ﬁqo:l 82?900382(\)0382(\)‘3(%]‘33?(5 CD(g}'.)GGl:

ocC C C o 2 C C N o Cr N f] C
SCL)CQTD WSJO’.)GBC\)('DQJ’J.O? ﬂQ)Q)’)ﬂCQJ’).S?’J. ODC@?O :DEII

-8

° cC C O o C C (2 ﬁ O o
:@mq§mgq|o:c?mez Q0500 gl 60D auaﬁ

C C ° C N\ C ° C C
2200:9260:03C memoaace.@mg@o’]a)en mog.a?.@mqjm

N

C (o¢ OC o (-3 o cmc
S'DG§[§9 @?9’3?;00(?8(7)99. 8068 JOO? 9’361 9’3030@§C\)8

/

BAY 0p5:096[g50p5¢5:03 253

L
'] C C C C C
o :Dell 089‘32@ ?0003(\)@896@89&38’30@:89603@3030

C C C Of] C C C C c C
C\)’.)Q@Q)CDCDGSS’DODO’) 82300 ?OOO)(\)ES’BOE:S?GO:C%COC

(e C

J
C (e c _C N C C
JOO@ mgpo.?os'acg 008&)C§9 ferlkcr o ECOO’JSIC:OOS?@O

(+4
[od (o (o C - CHOMSO C c O ﬁ Q C
@§mea§.saoel§02.o? SJQ)(D’)GJ]CO’JL.G'I Q)GO’.)’.)O’IJLQQJO’J

3o




Dividend
A final dividend at the rate of (25%) of the par value Joop2sdl asco (o) qoregpé oyliom
N C cCc o o C [ c o C
per share or (Ks 250) for every share has been proposed erag.sao@:saso:f; TPYPOONEMD RO OOINI0I0OYCIOTRO?
as per a resolution made at the Board of Directors’  ecoo§&:dl () ep3¢s °

meeting of the company held on 19" June 2019. The 22[godegm(gd corepboy Si{god3cloopdi 525361 safgodegep:
proposed dividend shall be paid from the company unrestricted S Joo@? & acd&co (o J) c[cf)e qugmg mq&gl gwqugwoqg

retained profits to the shareholders who are share holders ep:oéog oSS oSS
at record date as of 12 July 2019. cre
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Timely & Continuous Disclosure
1 1 1 2 o 1 cc o o [+ c o Co ° C [od
We are in compliance with YSX’s Disclosure Outline g&6Bmeadané qc,‘?;@lo,?me'jg;gﬁ QEE;‘EQ coq$s
and Requirements which were set up to build public ~ q&:8:[gi04e §¢ 05BEwpy sdigodajodep: eodepoy
[of

4
confidence in the fairness and soundness of the Stock Trading g co'ggooaoof::q

and our best efforts have been put in disclosing our company  gz0: gaqg&:o?$c\%o%§oc\)'j(ﬁ s.ﬁ.oée?:@&e‘:em oéa)o%e o2
corporate information to the public and investors for them mcSG@gngc)nggmg: ogogg@%g@egco'qu °o’]goé" 61$0°$
L d L

L
to make informed investment decisions without delay. Our 0600293058558 0g§8AA 0oSbBodepiond [3pdess

company’s corporate information is promptly disclosed on
YSX’s website and our company’s website. Our Company’s
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financial statements and annual reports can be accessed ¢ ¢ c ¢ c

: . 3905 (p0) qobese Joog 2881 gheo (po)qmegeadd
on both websites mentioned above. We have made the e ¢ < e ¢ o c e
: i cocdeudniiean poesstaogoag codewdgERR: [§ocloopdn
following statutory and voluntary disclosures at YSX from t ves t

30™ August 2018 to 30™ June 2019.

Date Disclosed Matter

31st Aug. 2018  |Annual Report (FY 2017-2018)

31st Aug. 2018  |Invitation of Special Meeting and 5th Annual General Meeting

2nd Oct. 2018 Resignation of Chief Operating Officer

3rd Oct. 2018 Resolutions passed at the Special Meeting and 5th AGM

3rd Oct. 2018 Notice of Dividend Payment Date

2nd Nov. 2018 Amendments of AGM Resolutions

28th Dec. 2018 |Unaudited consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended Sep 30, 2018

28th Dec. 2018 |Interim Results — Management Discussion & Analysis

8th Jan. 2019 Release of Managing Director and Appointment of Chief Executive Officer

20th Jun. 2019 |Notice of Proposed Dividend for Financial Year 2018-2019, Record Date and Ex-Dividend Date

28th Jun. 2019 Notice of Financial Results for Fmancial Year 2018-2019

28th Jun. 2019 Management Discussion and Analysis
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Investor relation |

MTSH is awarded “Best Return on Equity” by YSX

| Expo 2018

64| MTSH



J The Republic of the Union of Myanmar
Sroms Coe Ministry of Commerce s

Workshop on Implementation of
Special Economic Zones

17 Jan 2019 PARKROYAL Yangon

MTSH Media Conference
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Major Beneficial Shareholders

Asof 12" July 2019, the following are our 20 major beneficial shareholders

Certificate of incorporation/

No. Name number of certificate of Number of shares Yo
citizenship
1 |MYANMAR AGRIBUSINESS PUBLIC CORPORATION LIMITED.** 134/2012-2013 1,948,640 5.01
2 |NEW CITY DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC CO,, LTD 3053/2012-2013 1,900,000 4.88
3 [MYANMAR AGRICULTURAL & GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC LIMITED 2346/2012-2013 1,900,000 4.88
4 |MYANMAR EDIBLE OIL INDUSTRIAL PUBLIC CORPORATION(MEICO) LIMITED 2609/2012-2013 1,797,000 4.62
5  |Golden Land East Asia Development Public Limited. 115075667 1,771,546 455
6 |MYANMAR TECHNOLOGIES AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED 3493/2012-2013 1,639,840 421
7 |NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY GROUP 567/1998-1999 1,404,834 3.61
8§  |First Myanmar Investment Company Limited. 121398001 643,503 1.65
9 |CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED*** 184/1992-1993 567,806 1.46
10 |NAING MOE 12/LAMATA(N)011754 537,980 1.38
11 |TUN LWIN 12/LAMATA(N)013763 523,850 1.35
12 |U Thurane Aung 12/KAMAYA(N)050839 493,540 1.27
13 |ASIA MEGA LINK CO. LTD 1679 (2009-2010) 445,409 1.14
14 |Daw Ei Hnin Pwint 12/KAMAYA(N)050838 412,040 1.06
15 |KYAW ZAW THANT,U 12/LAMATA(N)034764 277,220 0.71
16 |Daw Moe Mya Mya 12/KAMAYA(N)045039 257,500 0.66
17 |U Win Aung 12/KAMAYA(N)008220 256,340 0.66
18 |Daw Ei Hnin Khine 12/KAMAYA(N)050840 236,830 0.61
19 |AYEYARWADY BANK LTD 397/2010-2011 222,008 0.57
20 |U Zaw Min Thike 12/LAMANA(N)005039 217,200 0.56

** Qut of which 1,900,000 shares are being pledged to AYEYARWADY BANK LTD.
**#pledged to Co-Operative Bank Limited.




Shareholding Statistics

We set out below our Company's Shareholder Statistics as at 12.07.2019

Range of Shares Number of shareholders | Percentage (%) | Number of shares | Percentage (%)
1-1,000 13,844 81.28% 4,092,683 10.51%
1,001-2,000 1,020 5.99% 1,698,746 4.36%
2,001-3,000 539 3.16% 1,450,443 3.73%
3,001-4,000 166 0.97% 591,804 1.52%
4,001-5,000 433 2.54% 2,123,507 5.45%
5,001-6,000 647 3.80% 3,419,886 8.78%
6,001-7,000 76 0.45% 496,322 1.27%
7,001-8,000 44 0.26% 329,151 0.85%
8,001-9,000 29 0.17% 246,653 0.63%
9,001-10,000 el 0.16% 259,484 0.67%
10,001-100,000 171 1.00% 4,129,640 10.61%
100,001-1,000,000 29 0.17% 7,555,603 19.41%
1,000,001 and above 7 0.04% 12,535,228 32.20%
Total 17,032 100% 38,929,150 100%

istration
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l
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Sustainability Policy

MTSH and our associate and subsidiary companies
have been working diligently in areas of sustainability since
inceptions. Our leaders are some of the largest supporters
of philanthropic causes and our company has led the
industry in good governance and ethics practices for some
time.

Our biggest opportunity lies in taking a strong position
in support of environmental sustainability. Recent studies
have shown that buildings account for as much as 40% of
the earth’s greenhouse gas emissions, which are believed
to contribute to climate change. As a leading real estate
services firm in Myanmar, our ability to influence how real
estate is built, sourced, occupied, and sold, is unsurpassed.

Climate change is a significant risk for Myanmar;
extreme weather may impact our operations. We believe
we can make a tangible impact on our environment by
improving energy efficiency, reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. We will work with our tenants and business
partners to make greener environment, and contribute to
the fight against climate change.

MTSH recognizes the value of aligning with the
international standards for sustainable and responsible
business practices. MTSH is a member of the United
Nations Global Compact (UNGC) since 2015. The UNGC
was initiated in 2000 to promote global corporate
responsibility with 10 guiding principles. We support the
Sustainable Development Goals (‘SDGs’), adopted in 2015,
aplan to tackle the world’s most pressing social, economic
and environmental challenges. SDGs cover 17 topics and
propose appropriate targets for 2030. We are also
dedicated to complying with the United Nations Universal
Declaration of Human Rights.

MTSH is commitments to the United Nations Global
Compact (UNGC), the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals, and strive to improve the integration
principles into our culture, strategy and operations as an

ongoing commitment to being a responsible business.
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Risk Management

Effective risk management is a key foundation of
delivering our strategy and integral to the achievement of
our objective of creating value for stakeholders. We have
established risk management framework comprising risk
governance, risk assessment, risk response and monitoring

and reporting.

Risk Risk
Governance Assessment
Risk Poli s
SRR Identification
Risk Strategy Risk Analysis
Risk Appetite Risk
Measurement
Guideline,
Methodology,
Tool

In our risk governance structure, the Board (as
assisted by the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee) is
responsible for overall risk management of the company.
The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee takes responsibility
for overseeing the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems on behalf of the Board, and senior
management is tasks with implementing the system.

We adopted the three lines of defense system to allow
the Board effective oversights of risk management process.

In first line of defense, day-to-day management of risk
is embedded within operational management. Head of
business units and departments ensure daily operation
compliance with established policies, SOPs, guideline and

regulation.
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MTSH Risk Management Framework

: Monitoring &
Risk Response Reporting
Risk )
Contidl Reporting
Residual Risk Beviow
Assessment
Residual Risk
Treatment
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Board of Directors

Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee

Business Unit
Head

1* line of defence
Internal Controls

2" line of defence
Risk Management

3" line of defence
Internal Audit

Risk management functions implement the established
risk management framework as second line of defense, by
assisting business functions in risk management process,
reviewing risk management framework for improvement,
and reporting to senior management and the Audit, Risk &
Compliance Committee.

The internal audit serves as third defense line by providing
assurance to the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee on
the effectiveness of risk management, controls and governance
practice. Key findings and internal auditor’s recommendations
for improvement are regularly reported to the Board through
the Audit Risk & Compliance Committee.

Risk management function is responsible for effective
implementation and review of our risk management framework,
while ultimate responsibility for oversight of risk management
rests with the Board.

Risk appetite defined the amount of risk we are willing
to tolerate in pursuit of our strategy and objective and we
have identified tolerance level for each of the principal risks.
It promotes consistent, ‘risk-informed’ decision-making and
it also supports robust corporate governance by setting clear
risk taking boundaries.

In our risk assessment process, risk registers are used
to document the risks identified, level of severity and probability,
ownership and mitigation measures for each risk. We have
identified three major risks that may have negative impact
on executing our strategy and achieving our business

objective.
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o Strategic risk
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Our approach to risk management is not to eliminate

risk entirely, but instead to manage our risk exposures across
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internal controls in place to bring the risk to as low as

reasonably practicable (ALARP) level, which will allow

the management to focus on treatment of residual risk.

The risk register will be review at least annually, or on
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the occurrence of significant event where existing risk

appetite level are altered, or new risks are identified, or

adequacy and effectiveness of existing controls are

impaired. The effectiveness of risk management process

and framework will be review, monitor and report to the
senior management, the Audit, Risk & Compliance

Committee annually.
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Directors' REPORT

The Directors’ Report for the Financial Year ended 31% March 2019 has been prepared in accordance with the

Myanmar Companies Act and the Myanmar Financial Reporting Standard.

Risk Management

The explanation on Risk Management are expressed

on page (70).
Dividends/ Distribution

The 2018 financial dividend/distribution of MMK
8,953,704,500 million (MMK 230 per ordinary share) was
paid on 17 October 2018.

In respect of the current year 2019, final dividend/
distribution of MMK 250 per share, amounting to MMK
9,732,287,500 was proposed by the Directors at a Board
of Director Meeting held on 19 June 2019.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
state of affairs. The Company continues to engage in the

business of investment holding.

Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date

There were no material events subsequent to the end

of the financial year.

Auditor

A resolution will be tabled by the board of directors to
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting for the
reappointment of Win Thin & Associates (Certified Public
Accountants) as the Company’s Independent auditors for

the Financial Year 2019/2020

Non-Audit Service

We have engaged U Win Thin of Win Thin Consulting
Limited (a related company of Win Thin & Associates as
our Compliance Officer. The appointment took effect from

14" March 2016.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

WIN AUNG
Chairman
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH 2019

Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)
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MTSH MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO. LTD.

Rooftop Floor, UMFCCI Office Tower, No.29, Min Ye Kyaw Swar Street, Lanmadaw Township, Yangon, Myanmar.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

It is the responsibility of the management to prepare the consolidated statements of financial position of Myanmar
Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited (the Company) and its subsidiary (the Group) as at 31 March
2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group, consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the Group, consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the management
is required to:

— Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; and
— Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group. We, as management committee, have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to us to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregu-
larities.

On behalf of Management

WIN AUNG
Chairman ‘
MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.

19 June 2019
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qp WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

HEAD OFFICE:. Room (2B/2C) 1* Floor, Rose Condominium, No.182/194. Botahtaung Pagoda Road, Pazundaung Township.
Yangon Region, Myanmar. Tel : 95-1-201798, 296164, Fax: 95-1-245671 Email : winthin9@myanmar.com.mm

MANDALAY BRANCH:- Room (9/10), East Wing of Bahtoo Stadium, 70" Street (Between 29" & 30" Street),
OFFICE Mandalay Region , Myanmar. Tel : 95-2-34451 , Fax: 95-2-34498

Ref:1690/ M-255/ March 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Group of Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Myanmar Thilawa SEZ
Holdings Public Company Limited(“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”) set out on
pages 79 to 102 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group, consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Myanmar Companies
Law. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Myanmar Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting
Standards and the provision of the Myanmar Companies Law.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Law, we also report that:
(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and
(i1) books of account have been maintained by the Company and by its subsidiary as required by
Section 258 of the Law.

(&
Saw Nelson (PA-400)
Engagement Partner

WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

19 June 2019
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MYANMARTHILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUB

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Note 2019 2018
Restated*
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 2,575,168 956,973
Intangible asset 7 6,194 5,435
Investment in associate 8 27,687,506 20,608,500
Other investment 9 10,000 10,000
Investment property 10 4,535,391 4,035,854
Deferred tax assets 11 12,060 8,179
Other assets 85,497 -
34,911,816 25,624,941
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 32,343,081 32,126,840
Trade and other receivables 13 2,886,191 4,867,485
Inventories 14 27,378,947 29,209,529
Construction contract work in progress 15 44,911 185,007
62,653,130 66,388,861
97,564,946 92,013,802
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued and paid-up share capital 16 38,929,150  38,929.150
Retained profits 45,515,833 38,982,052
84,444,983 77,911,202
Non-controlling interest 7,603,866 7,480,961
92,048,849 85,392,163
Non-current liabilities
Advance from customers 2,761,465 2,509,402
2,761,465 2,509,402
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 2,460,639 4,066,518
Current tax liability 293,993 45,719
2,754,632 4,112,237
97,564,946 92,013,802

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.
Authenticated by Directors:

z Vo

WIN AUNG Kyaw Zaw Wai TUN LWIN
Chairman, MTSH CEO, MTSH Director, MTSH

MYO MYINT AUNG
Head of Finance, MTSH

* MTSH = Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Note 2019 2018
Restated*

Revenue 18 5,382,179 11,000,824
Cost of sales 21 (2,133,698) (5,770,569)
Gross Profit 3,248,481 5,230,255
Other income 19 1,412,902 344,098
Other gains/(losses) 20 2,683,506 726,114
Selling and marketing expenses 21 (206,606) (53,221)
Administrative expenses 21 (2,618,492) (2,481,408)
Profit for the year 4,519,791 3,765,838
Share of profit of associate 8 11,395,054 9,082,732
Profitbefore tax 15,914,845 12,848,570
Income tax expense 22 (304,454) (43,474)
Net Profit for the year 15,610,391 12,805,096
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 15,610,391 12,805,096
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 15,487,486 12,060,965
Non-controlling interests 122,905 744,131
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 15,487,486 12,060,965
Non-controlling interests 122,905 744,131
Earnings per share (K per share)
Basic earnings per share 24 398 310

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Note 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 15,914,845 12,848,570
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation 380,565 307,913
Amortisation 2,119 1,320
Write-off 696 489
Reclassification - 10,919
Unrealised profit adjustment (122,573) 172,182
Share of profit of associate (11,395,054) (9,082,732)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,780,598 4,258,661
Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables 2,210,743 (3,084,273)
Deposit from suppliers - 3,053
Inventories (515,322) (4,696,647)
Construction contract work in progress 140,096 (175,811)
Trade and other payables (1,605,879) 761,193
Current tax liability - (497,536)
Advance from customers 252,063 (2,274,394)
Cash generated from operations 5,262,299 (5,705,754)
Income tax paid (289,510) (33,509)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,972,789 (5,739,263)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (62,231) (100,792)
Purchase of intangible asset (2,878) (2,204)
Dividend received from associate 4,347,763 21,734,100
Other asset (85,497) -
Purchase of shares from other investment - (10,000)
Net cash (used in) investing activities 4,197,157 21,621,104
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to shareholders (8,953,705) (10,121,579)
Net cash used in financing activities (8,953,705) (10,121,579)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 216,241 5,760,262
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 32,126,840 26,366,578
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 32,343,081 32,126,840

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1. General information

Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in the
Republic of the Union of Myanmar on 3 May 2013 under The Myanmar Companies Act. The Act
has been replaced by Myanmar Companies Law 2017. As such, the Company has been re-
registered and issued Company Registration No.151830293 according to the new Law.

On 26 May 2013, pursuant to the Cooperation Memorandum, the Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding with MMST LLP (MMS Thilawa Limited Liability Partnership) for the purpose
of establishing the Joint Venture Company for the development, marketing, sales and operation of
the Class A Project.

On 29 October 2013, pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding mentioned above, the
Company, the Thilawa SMC (Thilawa SEZ Management Committee) and MMSTD (MMS Thilawa
Development Co., Ltd) entered into the Joint Venture Agreement in connection with the
establishment of the JV Company to undertake the development, construction, marketing, sales and
operation of the Class A project. The Joint Venture Company was established as Myanmar Japan
Thilawa Development Ltd. (MJTD).

Under the Joint Venture Agreement, subject to the satisfaction of certain prescribed conditions
precedent, the Company will collectively subscribe for JV Company Shares of an initial aggregate
amount of US$50,000,000 in the proportions of 41%.

The principle business activities of the Company are to:

e invest in and participate in the management of the JV Company, which will engage in the
development, construction, marketing, sales and operation of the Class A Project;

e market and sell the Class A Properties to Myanmar Related Entities as exclusive agent,
and market and sell the Class A Properties to parties which are not Myanmar Related
Entities or Japanese Related Entities jointly with the Japanese consortium members; and

e engage in the development of Thilawa SEZ (other than the Class A Area) or any part
thereof as may be determined by our Directors in their discretion.

For additional information about the Company, please refer to the Company’s Prospectus dated
27February 2014.

The registered office of the Company is No. (29), Min Ye KyawSwar Road (UMFCCI Tower),
Lanmadaw Township, Yangon Region, the Republic of the Union of Myanmar.

The Company is listed in Yangon Stock Exchange on 20 May 2016.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) and have been based on historical cost
convention.

In preparing these financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made in 2018 financial statements to conform to the classification used in 2019.

Foreign currency translation
(1)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Myanmar Kyat, which is the presentation currency as well as
functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands,
unless otherwise indicated.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

Group Accounting
(a)  Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to
govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to a majority of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control
ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and recognized gains on
transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a
subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity
holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on their respective
interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2.5

2.6

(b)  Associated companies

Associated companies are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control,
generally accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to voting rights of 20% and above but not
exceeding 50%. Investments in associated companies are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting less impairment losses.

(¢) Equity method of accounting

In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses are recognized in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition other
comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income. These post-acquisition
movements and distributions received from the associated companies are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associated company
equals to or exceeds its interest in the associated company, including any other unsecured non-
current receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has obligations to make or
has made payments on behalf of the associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting
policies of associated companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Investment in associate

Investment in associate is initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs)
under the equity method of accounting and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss.
Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or capital appreciation (or both).
Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using a
straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of fifty
years or the balance of land use right.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed,
and adjusted as appropriate, at each statement of financial position date. The effects of any revision
are included in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property,plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
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replaced part is de-recognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences when the assets are ready items of property,
plant and equipment less their estimated residuals values using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful life. The estimated useful rates are as follows:

Leasehold land 2.19%
Plant 5%
Transformers 2.17%
Building 2.17%
Waste storage house 5%
Machinery and equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
Computer and equipment 20%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 40%
Office renovation 20%

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
the reporting period. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes
arise.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets
Accounting software

Accounting software license is initially capitalized at cost which includes the purchase prices (net
of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its
intended use. Direct expenditures are added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated
with maintaining the accounting software license are expensed off when incurred.

Computer software license is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortized to profit or loss using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of five years equivalent to 20%.

The amortization period and amortization method of intangible assets are reviewed at least at each
balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes
arise.

Construction Contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and
contract costs are recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the statement of financial position date (“percentage-of-
completion method”). When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognized to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue when it
is probable that the customer will approve the variation or negotiations have reached an advanced
stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim and they are capable of being
reliably measured.

The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred to
date to the estimated total costs for the contract. Costs incurred during the financial year in
connection with future activity on a contract are excluded from the costs incurred to date when
determining the stage of completion of a contract. Such costs are shown as construction contract
work-in-progress on the statement of financial position unless it is not probable that such contract
costs are recoverable from the customers, in which case, such costs are recognized as an expense
immediately.

At the statement of financial position date, the cumulative costs incurred plus recognized profits
(less recognized losses) on each contract is compared against the progress billings. Where the
cumulative costs incurred plus the recognized profits (less recognized losses) exceed progress
billings, the balance is presented as due from customers on construction contracts within “trade and
other receivables”. Where progress billings exceed the cumulative costs incurred plus recognized
profits (less recognized losses), the balance is presented as due to customers on construction
contracts within “trade and other payables”.

Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retentions by customers are included within “trade
and other receivables”. Advances received are included within “trade and other payables”.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost comprises cost of land
scraping cost, infrastructure development cost, direct labour and other direct cost. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits with various local banks.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade and other
receivables are reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amount.
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Issued and paid-up share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognized when the dividends are approved for
payment.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits are recognized as payable in the period in which the
benefits is earned by employee. Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is a probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligations; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company. Revenue is shown net of sales (after deducting commercial tax)

(a) Rendering of services — Management fees and commission fees
Fees and commission are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided.

(b) Sale of goods — Land
Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and title has passed to the
customer.

(c) Interestincome
Interest income arising from deposit at financial institution is recognized when the effective interest
method.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

(e) Revenue from construction contracts
Please refer to the paragraph “construction contracts” for the accounting policy for the revenue
from construction contracts.

(f)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised when earned on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



2.19 Income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Thecurrent income tax is calculated on the
basic of the tax rate and tax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax is recognized in profit or loss.

2.20 Commercial tax
Revenues expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of commercial tax except:
- where the commercial tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the commercial tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expenses item as applicable; and

-receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of commercial tax included.

The net amount of commercial tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

2.21 Comparative

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation
in the current year.

3. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period
affected.

Infrastructure development costs

Infrastructure development costs of land are recorded as inventories during the construction stage
and an apportionment of these costs will be recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
upon the recognition of the revenue of the land under development.

These infrastructure costs comprise of awarded contracts and an estimation of future ones. The total
costs were estimated by a third-party professional Quantity Surveyor and periodically re-validated
internally.

Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs relating to the land under
development, these costs are based on management’s best estimate. Where the final settlement of
costs and the related cost allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease
in the development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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Financial risk management

The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its risks. In addition to the
risk factors as stated in the Company’s Prospectus dated 27 February 2014, the main areas of
financial risks faced by the Group and the policy in respect of the major areas of treasury activity
are set out as follows:

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk due to assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies. However, the Group does not hedge its exposures to foreign exchange risk as
the risk is not expected to be significant.

Credit risk

The maximum credit risk associated with recognized financial assets is the carrying amount shown
in the statement of financial position. However, policies had been established by the Group to
minimize such risks.

Market risk

The Group is not exposed to any market risk.

Liquidity and cash flow risks

The Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate by the directors to
finance the operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flow.

90| MTSH

Capital management

The Group’s objectives, when managing its capital, are to safeguard and maintain adequate working
capital to continue as a going concern.
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7. Intangible asset

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) Software
Cost

Balance at 1 April 2018 8,617
Addition 2,878
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2019 11,495
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Balance at 1 April 2018 (3,182)
Amortisation (2,119)
Impairment loss -
Write off -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (5,301)
Net book value

At 31 March 2019 6,194
Cost

Balance at 1 April 2017 6,413
Addition 2,204
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2018 8,617
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Balance at 1 April 2017 (1,862)
Amortisation (1,320)
Impairment loss -
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2018 (3,182)
Net book value

At 31 March 2018 5,435

8. Investment in associate

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Opening balance 20,608,500 18,460,621
Proportionate net profit for the year 11,395,054 9,082,732
Dividend received (4,347,763)  (6,701,040)
Unrealised profit adjustment 31,715 (233,813)
Carrying value as at 31 March 2019 27,687,506 20,608,500

The Company's share of profit in its equity-accounted investee (i.e, Myanmar Japan Thilawa
Development Limited) for the year was Kyats 11,395,053,319.22 (USD 7,521,983.84 @ Kyats 1514.9)
(2018: Profit Kyats 9,082,731,587 (USD 6,803,544.26 @ Kyats 1,335). The equity accounted investee is
not publicly listed entity and consequentially does not have published price quotations.
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The following amounts represent the assets and the liabilities and income and expenses of the associate.

USD (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Owner-ship 41% 41%
Current assets 63,773 57,423
Non-current assets 12,047 12,598
Total assets 75,820 70,021
Current liabilities 18,936 25,282
Non-current liabilities 1,632 833
Total liabilities 20,568 26,115
Net assets 55,252 43,906
Income 42,966 44,226
Expenses (24,620) (27,632)
Profit 18,346 16,594
Share of profit 7,522 6,804

Other investment (MMK 10,000,000)

The above amount represents investment in Myanmar KyaukPhyu SEZ Holding Consortium Public Co.,

Ltd by the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT | 93



10. Investment property

Land and
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) Building
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2018 4,202,380
Transferred from inventories 674,842
Balance at 31 March 2019 4,877,222
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2018 (105,059)
Depreciation (106,307)
Impairment loss -
Balance at 31 March 2019 (211,366)
Unrealised profit adjustment (130,465)
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 4,535,391
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2017 4,213,299
Transferred from inventories -
Commercial tax (10,919)
Balance at 31 March 2018 4,202,380
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2017 (21,066)
Depreciation (83,993)
Impairment loss -
Balance at 31 March 2018 (105,059)
Unrealised profit adjustment (61,467)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 4,035,854

The company investment property at 31 March 2019 include three buildings of workers accommodation
at recreational and commercial area of Thilawa SEZ. The Directors are of the view that a fair value of the
property cannot be ascertained at 31 March 2019. The opinion is based on the following facts:

1. There is no such asset of this specification in Thilawa;

2. There is no history of such similar property transacted in Thilawa; and

3. Nosales of any asset type have been recorded in the Thilawa SEZ.

As such, it is not possible for a valuation to be done on a willing-buyer / willing-seller basis. As such, the
market comparable approach cannot be adopted. To value the property using the income capitalization
approach, the property has to be given sufficient time for leasing, and stabilization of that yield, for the
capitalization rate to be applied. Since occupation permit was only quite recently obtained, the rental
process is only in the beginning stage. Hence, the income capitalization approach cannot be adopted.

Given that the first two valuation methods cannot be applied, the third would be the cost approach. This
assumes that a reasonable buyer would have to pay equal or more than the cost of constructing a
comparable building. The Cost Approach is probably the most prudent in estimating the book /
reinstatement value of such an asset at 31 March 2019.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, two units of shop houses have been transferred

from inventory to investment property at their cost. As of 31 March 2019, the company investment
property includes:
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1. Three buildings of workers accommodation
2. One unit of type A shop house facing main road
3. One unit of type B shop house facing internal road

Details of the group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March
2019 are as follows:

Fair Value

as at

31 March

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019

Investment property
- Workers accommodation - - 8,548,688 8,548,688
- Unit A — Main road - 433,785 - 433,785
- Unit B — Internal road 363,605 - - 363,605

For unit A — Main road, the fair value was derived using the market comparable approach based on recent
market price of similar property with adjustment made for frontage.

For unit B — internal road, the fair value was derived using the market comparable approach based on
recent market prices of similar property without any significant adjustments being made.

For investment properties categorized into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following information is
relevant:

Investment Valuation Significant

Property Technique unobservable input(s) Sensitivity
Workers Income Capitalization rate Increase in the capitalization rate
accommodation capitalization used would result decrease in fair
approach value, and vice versa.
Occupancy rate Decrease in the occupancy rate

used would result decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

Monthly rental Decrease in the monthly rental
used would result decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 and into or out of Level 3 during the period.

The fair value of investment properties is not based on valuation by an independent valuer.

The property rental income from the group’s investment properties all of which are leased out under
operating lease, amounted to MMK 185,257 (thousand). Direct operating expenses (including repairs and

maintenance) arising from the rental —generating investment properties amounted to MMK 131,726
(thousand).
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11.

Deferred tax asset

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the

financial position as follows:

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Deferred tax assets
To be recovered within one year - -
To be recovered after one year 12,060 8,179
12,060 8,179
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Cash in hand 20,213 20,342
Cash at bank — current 30,951,037 30,352,812
Cash at bank — saving 1,358,119 1,465,809
Cash at bank — call 13,712 287,877
32,343,081 32,126,840
13. Trade and other receivables
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Trade receivables from
- Related parties* 260,866 229,887
- Non-related parties 399,106 12,490
Other receivable from
- Affiliates & related parties** - 90
- Non-related parties 9,559 -
Construction contract
- Due from related parties 325,196 2,761,793
Accrued income
- Related parties 588,936 590,049
- Non-related parties 12,198 -
Deposit 17,040 22,021
Prepayments & advance 56,274 119,391
Advance income tax 336,923 107,473
Advance commercial tax 880,093 1,024,291
2,886,191 4,867,485

* It comprises management services fees receivable from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited

(MJTD).

** It comprises expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of affiliates & related parties.
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14.

Inventories (MMK 27,378,947,000)

Inventories include cost of leasehold land acquired from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited
(MJTD) for the development of residential and commercial area of Thilawa Special Economic Zone. It
also includes cost of land scraping, infrastructure development, shop houses construction, food court
development and fencing the water treatment plant during the period.

15. Construction contract
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Construction contract work in progress
Beginning of financial year 185,007 9,196
Contract costs incurred 1,565,921 4,154,843
Contract expenses recognised in profit or loss (1,706,017) (3,979,032)
End of financial year 44,911 185,007
Aggregate costs incurred and profits recognised (less losses 2,329,222 5,950,661
recognised) to date on uncompleted construction contracts
Less: Progress billing (1,904,527) (5,360,612)
Unbilled to customers current financial year 424,695 590,049
Due from related party on construction contracts (Note 14)
Billed to customer 325,196 2,761,793
Unbilled to customers — current financial year 424,695 590,049
Unbilled to customers — previous financial year 164,241 -
End of financial year 914,132 3,351,842

16. Issued and paid-up share capital
No. of ordinary shares issued Issued and fully paid-up

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) share capital

2019 2018 2019 2018
Beginning of financial year 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150
Issued of shares - - - -
End of financial year 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150
17. Trade and other payables
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Trade payables to non-related parties 8,442 2,053,769
Construction contract-due to supplier 634,866 36,267
Other payables to
- Related parties 149,932 93,314
- Non-related parties 145,478 105,086
Deposit from suppliers 380,547 408,856
Accrued expenses 136,515 4,160
Unpaid dividend 869,533 797,273
Deferred rental income
- Related parties 55,106 464,637
- Non-related parties 72,352 10,021
Commercial tax 7,868 93,135
2,460,639 4,066,518
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18. Revenue

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Management fees 1,040,846 915,507
Sales commission 1,335,889 203,687
Construction revenue 2,329,222 5,950,662
Sale of land 738,720 3,574,358
Sale of building - 797,390
Rental income 185,257 79,759

5,629,934 11,521,363
Less commercial tax* (247,755) (520,539)

5,382,179 11,000,824

Management fees

Management fees are received from Myanmar JapanThilawa Development Limited (MJTD) in
consideration of management services provided by the Company for the following personnel;

(1) Chairman

(2) Vice President (Myanmar Desk)

(3) Head of Finance & Accounting

(4) Head of Administration & Human Resources

Sales commission

The above comprises commission fees income from MJTD for the successful contracts between MJTD
and its customers whom introduced by the Company.

Construction revenue

The above mainly comprises of a road construction contract and construction of rental factory B
extension from MJTD.

Sale of land
The above comprise of sale of land to Myanmar Apex Bank Limited.
Rental income

The above comprises of rental of rooms in dormitory and shop house.

19. Other income

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Interest income 1,337,809 336,537
Tender income 800 -
Utilities income 57,280 4,201
Miscellaneous income 17,013 -
Sale proceed — written off fixed asset - 3,360

1,412,902 344,098
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20. Other gains/(losses)

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Currency exchange gains 2,683,506 726,114
2,683,506 726,114

21. Expenses by nature

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Land Cost 278,963 958,586
Construction contract cost 1,706,017 3,979,032
Cost of rental and utilities 131,726 546,172
Write off - property, plant and equipment 696 489
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 274,258 223,920
Depreciation of investment property 106,308 83,993
Amortisation charge of intangible asset 2,119 1,320
Employee benefit expenses (Note 23) 679,747 611,978
Key management personal and director compensations (Note 25-b) 861,786 925,408
Advertising and agency fees expense 206,606 53,221
Rental expense 181,917 158,680
Transportation expense 83,327 31,515
Listing expense 6,393 14,747
Other expense 561,506 543,955
Unrealised profit adjustment (122,573) 172,182

4,958,796 8,305,198

22. Income tax expense

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018

Current tax expenses

Current year 293,993 45,719

Deferred income tax (3,881) (8,179)

Changes in estimates related to prior years 14,342 5,934
304,454 43,474

23. Employee benefit expenses

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Wages and salaries 475,245 393,918
Other benefits 204,502 218,060

679,747 611,978

ANNUAL REPORT | 99



24.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (Myanmar 15,487,486 12,060,965
Kyat in thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for basic 38,929 38,929
Earnings per share (shares in thousands)

Basic earnings per share 398 310
Per value of shares (Myanmar Kyat) 1,000 1,000

25.

Related party transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions took place between the holding company and the related parties at terms agreed between the

parties:

(a) Sales and purchase of goods and services

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Management fees from MJTD 991,282 871,912
Sales commission fees from MJTD 1,272,275 193,987
Construction revenue from MJTD 2,238,089 5,695,395

Other related parties comprise mainly companies which are controlled or significantly influenced by the

holding company’s key management personnel which are as follows:

Position 2019 2018
No.  Company Name Related Executives Kyats 000  Kyats *000
Union of Myanmar Federation
1 of Chamber of U Thein Han Director 181,887 164,228
Commerce & Industry
(Rent of Head office)
) Sinma Construction .Group Ltd U KyawKyaw Win A?ternative 2,177 2,614
(New office renovation) Director
3 Star City UTheimWai 0 - 28,894
Chairman
4 CB Securities U KhinMaung Aye Vice Chairman 2,500 2,500
5 KFC U TheimWai Vice Chairman - 15,000
Information Matrix U Thaung Su Nyein A@ternatlve 26,378 29,596
6 Director
. Alternative
7 IM Ringer Co.,Ltd U Thaung Su Nyein Director 131,413 -

Outstanding balances of related parties as at 31 March 2019are disclosed in Notes 13 and 17 respectively.

100| MTSH



(b) Key management personnel and director compensation

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Director remuneration 72,000 72,000
Director bonus* 149,932 93,313
Key management personnel remuneration 576,203 744,175
Key management bonus 63,651 15,920

861,786 925,408

*The Company provided Ks 149,932,327 as bonus to the Board Members in relating to the performance
of the Company for the year 2018/19.

(¢) Significant agreements with related parties

Management fees

The Company entered into management memorandums with MJTD for which to provide management
services. Under the term of these memorandums, the Company is entitled to receive management fees as
stipulated in the memorandum and will expire in December, 2022.

Commission fees

The Company entered into marketing agreements with MJTD for which to provide with information in
respect to potential locators and coordination services. Under the term of the agreements, the Company is
entitled to receive commission fees at 6% of the contract price. The term of the agreements is for five
years and shall be extended for further period by notify in writing at least 30 days prior to expiration of
this agreement.

26.

27.

Events occurring after the reporting date

Board of Directorsof the Company has resolved on 19 June 2019 to propose a dividend of Ks.250 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Correction of errors

During 2018-2019, the management discovered that land cost per square foot that charges to cost of sales
for land lease and sublease of shop house is understated due to basis of valuation on gross land area. The
errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for prior period.

i. Statement of financial position (extract)

2018 Increase/ Increase/ 2018
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Restated)

Myanmar Kyats (In Thousands) 1-4-2017 2018
Inventories 29,519,340  (193,960) (115,851) 29,209,529
Opening retained earning 39,229,901 (155,168) (92,681) 38,982,052
Non-controlling interest 7,542,923 (38,792) (23,170) 7,480,961

(193,960)  (115,851)

ii. Statement of profit or loss (extract)

2018 Increase/ 2018
(Decrease) (Restated)

Myanmar Kyats (In Thousands) 2018
Land Cost 842,735 115,851 958,586
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28. Authorization of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019were authorized for issue on
19June 2019.
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MTSH MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO. LTD.
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DIRECTORY

@  RESPONSIBLE ENTITY

MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.
Company Registration No. 151830293

MTSH OFFICE, ROOF TOP FLOOR, UMFCCI OFFICE TOWER,
NO. 29, MIN YE KYAW SWAR STREET, LANMADAW TOWNSHIP,
YANGON

® ASSOCIATE

MYANMAR JAPAN THILAWA DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
Company Registration No. 1037894656
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, MJTD OFFICE,

DAGON THILAWA ROAD, THILAWA SEZ,

THANLYIN TOWNSHIP, YANGON

®  SUBSIDIARY

THILAWA PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
Company Registration No. 101952428
THILAWA DEVELOPMENT ROAD, THILAWA SEZ,
THANLYIN TOWNSHIP, YANGON

REGISTERED OFFICE

¢ AUDITOR

WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES (CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT)
ROOM (2B/2C), 1ST FLOOR, ROSE CONDOMINIUM,

NO. 182/194, BOTAHTAUNG PAGODA ROAD,

PAZUNDAUNG TOWNSHIP, YANGON

® INVESTOR INQUIRIES

MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.

MTSH OFFICE, ROOF TOP FLOOR, UMFCCI OFFICE TOWER,

NO. 29, MIN YE KYAW SWAR STREET, LANMADAW TOWNSHIP,
YANGON

TeL: +9512301772, 2301773, 2301853

Wes: www.mtshmyanmar.com - .
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.

Rooftop Floor, UMFCCI Office Tower,
No 29, Min Ye' Kyaw Swar Street, Lanmadaw Township,
Yangon Region, Myanmar.
Tel : +95 1 2301772, 2301773, 2301853
E-mail : info@mtshmyanmar.com
www.mtshmyanmar.com
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